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Two Financial Center
60 South Street
Boston, MA 02111

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Boston, Massachusetts:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Boston, Massachusetts (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the Dudley Square Realty Corporation, the Ferdinand Building Development
Corporation, and the City’s Permanent Funds, which represent 5.8% and .4% of the assets and revenues of
the governmental activities, respectively, and 1.5% and .8% of the assets and revenues of the aggregate
remaining fund information, respectively. We also did not audit the financial statements of the State-
Boston Retirement System and the City’s OPEB Trust Fund and Private-Purpose Trust Funds, which
represent 96.6% and 80.6% of the assets and revenues of the aggregate remaining fund information,
respectively. Further, we did not audit the financial statements of the Trustees of the Public Library of the
City of Boston and the Economic Development and Industrial Corporation of Boston, which represent
28.4% and 20.9% of the assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units,
respectively. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to
us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for those entities, is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership,
the U.S. member firm of KPMG International Cooperative
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.
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accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial
position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof and the budgetary comparison for the City’s General
Fund for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Emphasis of Matters
Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement

As discussed in Note 2n to the financial statements, in 2014, the City adopted Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Our
opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2n to the financial statements, the City has elected to change its application of the
actuarial cost method used in its accounting and financial reporting of other post-employment benefits in
2014. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Prior-Year Comparative Information

The financial statements include partial prior-year comparative information related to the budgetary
comparison for the City’s General Fund. Such information does not include all of the information required
for a presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the City’s financial statements for the year ended June 30,
2013, from which such partial information was derived.

Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management’s discussion and analysis and
the schedules of funding progress and employer contributions, as listed in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the GASB who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
and other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 23,
2014 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

KPMe LIP

December 23, 2014
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

The City of Boston (the City) provides this Management’s Discussion and Analysis to present additional information to
the readers of the City’s basic financial statements. This narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
City is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. Readers are encouraged to consider this information in conjunction with
the additional information that is furnished in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s financial statements. The City’s basic
financial statements include three components: 1) Government-wide Financial Statements, 2) Fund Financial
Statements, and 3) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains required supplementary information
regarding historical pension information and other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan information. The components
of the financial statements are described in the following sections.

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include two types of financial statements that present different views of the City — the
Government-wide Financial Statements and the Fund Financial Statements. The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
supplement the financial statement information and clarify line items that are part of the financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Government-wide Financial Statements provide a broad view of the City’s operations in a manner similar to a private
sector business. The statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the City’s financial position,
which assists in assessing the City’s economic condition at the end of the fiscal year. These are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This basically means they follow methods
that are similar to those used by most businesses. They take into account all revenues and expenses connected with the
fiscal year even if cash involved has not been received or paid. The Government-wide Financial Statements include two
statements:

o The Statement of Net Position presents all of the government’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

o The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods (such as uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave). This statement also presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each function of the City.

Both the above financial statements present two separate sections as described below.
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. Governmental Activities — The activities in this section are mostly supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues (federal and state grants). Most services normally associated with city government fall into this category,
including general government, human services, public safety, public works, property and development, parks and
recreation, library, schools, public health programs, state and district assessments, and debt service.

. Discretely Presented Component Units — These are legally separate entities for which the City has financial
accountability but function independent of the City. For the most part, these entities operate similar to private sector
businesses. The City’s four discretely presented component units are the Boston Public Health Commission, the Boston
Redevelopment Authority, the Economic Development Industrial Corporation, and the Trustees of the Boston Public
Library.

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their respective administrative
offices. Additional information about the City’s component units is presented in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

The Government-wide Financial Statements can be found immediately following this discussion and analysis.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The City, like other local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

The Fund Financial Statements focus on individual parts of the City government, reporting the City’s operations in more
detail than the Government-wide Financial Statements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories.
It is important to note that these fund categories use different accounting approaches and should be interpreted
differently. The three categories of funds are:

Governmental Funds — Most of the basic services provided by the City are financed through governmental funds.
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
Government-wide Financial Statements. However, unlike the Government-wide Financial Statements, the Governmental
Fund Financial Statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources. They also focus on the
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the
government’s near term financing requirements. This approach is known as using the flow of current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this approach, revenues are recorded when
cash is received or when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available to liquidate liabilities of the current
period). Expenditures are generally recorded when liabilities are incurred, except for those related to long-term
liabilities, which are recorded when due and payable. These statements provide a detailed short term view of the City’s
finances to assist in determining whether there will be adequate financial resources available to meet the current needs
of the City.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the Government-wide Financial Statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the Government-wide Financial Statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long term impact of the government’s near term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
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facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and the governmental activities. These reconciliations are
presented on the page immediately following each governmental fund financial statement.

The City presents four columns in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. The City’s three major governmental funds are the General Fund,
the Special Revenue Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund. All non-major governmental funds are combined in the “Other
Governmental Funds” column on these statements. The Governmental Fund Financial Statements can be found
immediately following the Government-wide Financial Statements.

Of the City’s governmental funds, the General Fund is the only fund for which a budget is legally adopted. The Statement
of Revenues and Expenditures — Budgetary Basis is presented after the governmental fund financial statements. This
statement provides a comparison of the General Fund original and final budget and the actual expenditures for the
current and prior year on a budgetary basis.

In accordance with state law and regulations, the City’s legally adopted General Fund budget is prepared on a
“budgetary” basis instead of U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Among the key differences between
these two sets of accounting principles are that “budgetary” records property tax as it is levied, while GAAP records it as
it becomes susceptible to accrual, “budgetary” records certain activities and transactions in the General Fund that GAAP
records in separate funds, and “budgetary” records any amount raised that covers a prior year deficit as an expenditure
and any available funds raised from prior year surpluses as a revenue, while GAAP ignores these impacts from prior
years. The difference in accounting principles inevitably leads to varying results in excess or deficiency of revenues over
expenditures. Additional information and a reconciliation of “budgetary” to GAAP statements is provided in note 4 to
the Financial Statements.

Proprietary Funds — These funds are used to show activities that operate more like those of commercial enterprises.
Like the Government-wide Financial Statements, Proprietary Fund Financial Statements use the economic resources
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. There are two types of proprietary funds — enterprise funds and
internal service funds. Enterprise funds charge fees for services provided to outside customers including local
governments. Enterprise Funds provide the same type of information as the business-type activities of the Government-
wide Financial Statements within governmental activities, only in more detail. Currently, the City does not have any
enterprise funds. The Internal Service Fund provides health insurance services predominantly to other funds,
departments or agencies of the City. Therefore, its activities are included in the Government-wide financial statements
within governmental activities. The Proprietary Funds Financial Statements can be found immediately following the
Governmental Fund Financial Statements.

Fiduciary Funds— These funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the Government-wide Financial Statements because the resources of
these funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like
that used for proprietary funds. They use the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.

The City’s fiduciary funds are the Employee Retirement Fund (the State-Boston Retirement System), which accounts for
the transactions, assets, liabilities, and net position of the City employees’ pension plan; the OPEB Trust Fund, which is
an irrevocable trust established for the accumulation of assets to reduce the unfunded actuarial liability associated with
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the City’s obligation for other postemployment benefits; and the Private Purpose Trust and Agency Funds, which include
money held and administered by the City on behalf of third parties.

The Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements can be found immediately following the Proprietary Fund Financial
Statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
Government-wide and the Fund Financial Statements. The Notes to the Financial Statements can be found immediately
following the Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements.

Required Supplementary Information

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information, which includes a
schedule of funding progress and a schedule of employer contributions for the State-Boston Retirement System and the
OPEB Trust Fund.

CURRENT YEAR FINANCIAL IMPACTS

e The City of Boston’s OPEB obligation significantly impacts the government-wide financial results. Each year, the City
is required to recognize an additional portion of its unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The most recent valuation of
the City’s OPEB obligations as of June 30, 2013, estimated that the total OPEB unfunded actuarial accrued liability of
the City decreased by $860.0 million to $2.05 billion. This decrease was largely as a result of changes to the discount
rate based on the City’s funding policy and a result of a change in the application of the Projected Unit Credit cost
method to allocate benefits through an employee’s expected retirement age. Refer to note 2n of the Financial
Statements for more information.

e In fiscal year 2014, the City’s contribution to the OPEB Trust Fund ($153.6 million) for retiree health benefits
includes $40.0 million in advance funding toward reducing the unfunded actuarial accrued liability and also met the
annual required contribution (ARC) of $153.5 million. In fiscal year 2015, the City has also appropriated $40.0 million
in advance funding toward reducing the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

This analysis is based on the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities found directly after
Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

Government-wide Highlights

Net Position — Primary Government — The total assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at fiscal year ended June 30,
2014 by $603.1 million (presented as net position). At year end, the City had a surplus in governmental activities
unrestricted net position in the amount of $82.6 million.

Changes in Net Position — Primary Government — The City’s total net position increased by $2.8 million from fiscal year
2013, which includes a $15.0 million decrease from changes in accounting principles.
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Net Position
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The City’s
net position totaled $603.1 million at the end of 2014, compared to $600.3 million at the end of the previous year.

The components of net position comprise the following: the investment in capital assets such as land, buildings,
equipment, and infrastructure (road, bridges, and other immovable assets), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that are still outstanding — this amount is $457.8 million indicating that the net book value of the City’s capital
assets exceeds the amount of related capital debt outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequentially, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

A portion of the City’s governmental activities net position, $62.7 million or 10.4%, represents restricted net position, or
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. Internally imposed designations of
resources are not presented as restricted net assets. Unrestricted net position increased $8.5 million from 2013.
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Net Position - Primary Government
(In thousands)

Governmental Activities
Total Primary Government

2014 2013
ASSETS:
CUITENE @SSEES.ovvieiiisiieeiet st sttt sesessstesesesereserererenes S 1,598,640 S 1,578,018
CaPital @SSETS...cvvviiiiiiiierisiseie ettt 1,746,054 1,628,051
OthEr ASSBLS...cuvevieriirererereere ettt ere e ereane 129,984 145,018
Total assets. 3,474,678 3,351,087
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Total deferred outflows of resources........cccoeeererereenene 6,435 -
LIABILITIES:
Current Habilities......ooeveveveeeevieeeeeeece e 677,495 663,160
Noncurrent liabilities.......cevveviievevievieiciceceeeeeerens 2,198,451 2,087,630
Total liabilities 2,875,946 2,750,790
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Total deferred inflows of resources..........ccecvererrenennns 2,039 -
NET POSITION:
Netinvestment in capital @ssets.......ccovvvverrrrererevenens 457,789 450,322
RESLACLE 1.vvevrietiieeeeeee et 62,701 75,878
UNPESEHCLE..vivivieiireteieteree ettt 82,638 74,097

Total net position S 603,128 $ 600,297
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Changes in Net Position - Primary Government
(In thousands)

Governmental Activities

2014 2013
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges fOr SEIVICES.....uuuiviririrererereeeese s S 203,239 $ 205,938
Operating grants and contributions 583,480 549,596
Capital grants and contributions... 11,972 37,256
General revenues:
2,065,251 1,979,180
Grants and contributions not restricted... 199,007 185,827
INVESTMENT INCOME.....oovvieiecieceeceeeeee et 16,713 14,732
MiSCEIIANEOUS.....vcvvveviieriietieereec e 4,012 7,820
Total revenues. 3,083,674 2,980,349
Program expenses:
General government 161,913 127,882
Human services 49,291 50,690
Public safety 821,196 826,700
Public works 157,491 132,506
Property and development..........oveeeeeeeenenninnninnns 118,816 114,673
Parks and recreation 32,297 32,242
52,192 51,875
1,554,563 1,455,300
Public health programs 69,896 69,978
Interest on long-term debt.... 48,188 41,900
Total program expense 3,065,843 2,903,746
Excess before transfers and other items.........c.ccceereenenennns 17,831 76,603
Loss on disposal of capital assets.........cceevevevvirevisrevirinerins - (903)
Change in net position 17,831 75,700
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting
principle (note 2n) (15,000) -
Net position —beginning of year..........ccocvviiinisnsnsnininins 600,297 524,597
Net position —end of year $ 603,128 S 600,297

Note that the 2013 Financial Statements above have not been restated to reflect the implementation of GASB Statement No. 65.
“Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities”, and the change in accounting principle related to the City’s OPEB actuarial
valuation described in note 2n to the Financial Statements.
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Revenues - Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year 2014

B Taxes and Payments in lieu of
Taxes

M Program Revenues

m Other

Expenses - Governmental Activities FY14
(in thousands)
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Governmental Activities

The City’s governmental activities net position increased by $2.8 million over the prior fiscal year. The following net
changes occurred during the course of operations in fiscal year 2014: In the assets accounts, cash and investments
increased by $80.0 million, receivables decreased by $62.6 million, and capital assets increased by $118.0 million. In the
liability accounts, there was a decrease in warrants and accounts payable of $4.3 million and an increase in accrued
liabilities of $28.9 million. Additionally, an increase of $16.6 million was recorded relative to the City’s other
postemployment benefit obligation in 2014.

During fiscal year 2014, the City’s revenues increased by 3.5%. The City’s largest sources of revenues were property
taxes, excise taxes, and payment in lieu of taxes of $2.06 billion (67.0% of total revenues) and $798.7 million of program
revenues (25.9% of total revenues). Taxes increased by $86.1 million from the previous year. Program revenues
increased by $5.9 million for fiscal year 2014. This is largely due to increases in parking meter revenues and increases in
operating grant reimbursements. The City’s expenses cover a range of services. The largest expenses were for schools
(51.55 billion), public safety (5821.2 million), general government ($162.0 million), public works ($157.5 million),
property and development ($118.8 million), public health programs ($69.9 million), and human services ($49.3 million).
In 2014, governmental activities expenses exceeded program revenues (i.e., user charges, operating grants, and capital
grants) by $2.27 billion. This shortfall was covered primarily through taxes ($2.06 billion) and unrestricted grants and
contributions ($199.0 million).

Comparative data on these revenues and expenses is itemized in the reporting of the Changes in Net Position — Primary
Government earlier in this Management Discussion and Analysis.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUND STATEMENTS

This analysis is based on the Governmental and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. As noted earlier, the City uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements.

Fund Highlights

Governmental Funds — Fund Balances — as of the close of fiscal year 2014, the City’s governmental funds reported a
combined ending fund balance of $1.14 billion, an increase of $87.3 million from the prior year. Of this total amount,
$532.9 million represents the unassigned fund balance. The increase in fund balance is largely due to an increase in
property and excise taxes and a $59.5 million change in beginning fund balance related to the elimination of Section 108
receivables from deferred revenue from the implementation of GASB 65. Please refer to note 2n to the Financial
Statements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows, outflows, and balances of
spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financial requirements. In particular, unassigned
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s financial position at the end of the fiscal year.

General Fund — Fund Balance — The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. The City’s General Fund — Fund
Balance Policy states in part to maintain a GAAP unassigned fund balance in the General Fund that is 15%, or higher, of
GAAP General Fund operating expenditures for the fiscal year. The GAAP unassigned fund balance at the end of fiscal
year 2014 was $532.9 million, which represents approximately 19.4% of GAAP General Fund operating expenditures.
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However, because the City is required to follow the statutory basis of accounting rather than GAAP for determining the
amount of unassigned fund balance that can be appropriated, it is the statutory (not the GAAP) fund balance that is used
to calculate “free cash.” Free cash is the amount of statutory fund balance in the General Fund, as certified by the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ Department of Revenue, which is available for appropriation and is generated when
actual revenues, on a cash basis, exceed budgeted amounts and encumbrances are less than appropriations, or both.

The City has established the General Fund-Fund Balance Policy to ensure that the City maintains adequate levels of fund
balance to mitigate current and future risks (i.e., revenue shortfalls and unanticipated expenditures). The policy in full
states that the City shall maintain a GAAP Unassigned Fund Balance in the General Fund that is 15% or higher than the
current fiscal year’s GAAP General Fund Operating Expenditures. The City shall only consider the certification of Free
Cash (as defined by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ Department of Revenue) in years where the appropriation of
Free Cash shall not cause the fiscal year’s GAAP Unassigned Fund Balance to go below 15% of the fiscal year’s GAAP
General Fund Operating Expenditures, while maintaining a Budgetary Unassigned Fund Balance at 10% or higher of
Budgetary Operating Expenditures. The City shall only consider the appropriation of Certified Free Cash to offset: (1)
certain fixed costs such as pension contributions and related post-retirement health benefits; and/or (2) to fund
extraordinary and non-recurring events as determined and certified by the City Auditor.

Special Revenue Fund - Fund Balance — The Special Revenue Fund accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for predefined purposes. The fiscal year 2014 Special Revenue
Fund balance is reported at $214.7 million, a $81.8 million increase from fiscal year 2013. This increase is due to an
increase in intergovernmental revenues from reimbursable grants as well as a $59.5 million change in beginning fund
balance related to the elimination of Section 108 receivables from deferred revenue from the implementation of GASB
65.

Capital Projects Fund — Fund Balance — The Capital Projects Fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds. The
fiscal year 2014 Capital Projects Fund balance is $68.4 million, a $27.2 million decrease from fiscal year 2013.

Other Governmental Funds — Fund Balance — Other Governmental Funds account for assets held by the City in
permanent trust funds, as well as the activities related to DSRC and FBDC. The fiscal year 2014 Other Governmental
Funds fund balance is $76.3 million, a $132 thousand decrease from fiscal year 2013.

Internal Service Fund

The City’s Internal Service Fund accounts for the City’s self-insurance program for health benefits provided by Blue Cross
Blue Shield and Harvard Pilgrim Health Care for City employees, their dependents, and retirees. The Internal Service
Fund is included as part of the governmental activities in the government-wide statements.

Budgetary Highlights

General Fund budgetary highlights include ending fiscal year 2014 with a $9.5 million surplus. This represents the City’s
29th consecutive year with a balanced budget. There were no material variances between the original budget and final
budget amounts. Significant unfavorable variances from the final budget to actual results were in the areas of judgments
and claims, public safety, public works, and snow removal. Public safety saw an unfavorable variance of $20.7 million
due to an increase in overtime expenditures in the Police Department. Also, public works saw an unfavorable variance of
$4.3 million in snow removal.
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Favorable results were reported for General Fund revenue sources, including $18.7 million in licenses and permits, $16.9
million in departmental and other revenue, $13.2 million in Commonwealth of Massachusetts funds and $38.0 million in
excises, predominantly in motor vehicle and room occupancy excise taxes. Other available funds shows a revenue deficit
of $57.3 million, however, this is a result of not transferring $16.5 million of parking meter receipts from the special
revenue fund, $807 thousand of cemetery funds and $40.0 million of free cash from the general fund.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities, as of June 30, 2014, has a net book value of
$1.75 billion, made up of costs totaling $3.40 billion less accumulated depreciation of $1.65 billion. This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress.
Infrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and have value only to the City, such as roads, bridges,
streets, sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems, and similar items.

The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was approximately $118.0 million in
terms of net book value. However, actual expenditures to purchase or construct capital assets were $219.4 million for
the fiscal year. Most of this amount was used for the purpose of constructing or reconstructing buildings and building
improvements. Depreciation charges for the year totaled $101.5 million. Additional information on the City’s capital
assets can be found in note 8 to the Financial Statements.

Long Term Obligations

Debt Administration — The authority of the City to incur debt is governed by federal and state laws that restrict the
amounts and purposes for which a municipality can incur debt. At year end, the City had $1.19 billion in General
Obligations Bonds principal outstanding — an increase of $49.3 million over last year.

There was one bond issuance that took place in fiscal year 2014. The March 12, 2014 $153.0 million Series A general
obligation bond issuance, used to finance various capital projects in the City. In March 2014, in conjunction with the
City’s annual bond offering, the rating service bureau Moody’s Investors Service reaffirmed the City’s bond ratings at
Aaa and the rating service bureau Standard & Poor’s increase the bond rating to a AAA. General Obligation Bonds are
backed by the full faith and credit of the City, including the City’s power to levy additional taxes to ensure repayment of
the debt. Accordingly, all general obligation debt currently outstanding has been approved by a vote of the City Council.

Notes and Leases Payable and Other Long Term Obligations — The City’s general long term notes and leases and other
long term obligations increased $34.9 million, or 3.09%, during the current fiscal year. Key factors for this increase are
the increase in the net OPEB obligation of $16.6 million and an increase in the workers’ compensation liability of $13.6
million.

Additional information on the City’s long term debt obligations can be found in note 10 to the Financial Statements.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The GASB has issued Statement No. 65, "Iltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities." This Statement specifies
items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities that should now be reported as deferred outflows of
resources, deferred inflows of resources, outflows of resources, or inflows of resources. The requirements of this
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Statement were implemented effective July 1, 2013 for financial statements resulting in a restatement of beginning
equity for the governmental activities and special revenue fund and the reclassification of certain items reported within
liabilities as deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources. Refer to note 2n to the Financial
Statements for more information.

FUTURE PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued Statement No. 67, "Financial Reporting for Pension Plans; an amendment of GASB Statement No.
25." This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25 and No. 50 related to pension plans that are
administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements. The requirements of Statements No. 25 and No. 50 remain
applicable to pension plans that are not administered through trust or equivalent arrangements. The requirements of
this Statement are effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2013.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 68, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions; an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27." This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 27 and No. 50 for employers’ provision
of pension benefits related to pension plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements. The
requirements of Statements No. 27 and No. 50 remain applicable for pensions that are not administered as trusts or
equivalent arrangements. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2014.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 71, “Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement
Date — An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.” The objective of this Statement is to address an issue regarding
application of the transition provisions of Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions”. The
issue relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or non-
employer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government’s
beginning net pension liability. The provisions of this Statement should be applied simultaneously with the provisions of
Statement 68.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all of the City’s citizens,
taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional information should be addressed to: City of Boston, Auditing Department, Boston City Hall, Room
M 4, Boston, MA 02201. Alternatively, these requests may also be made through email, by contacting the Auditing
Department at CityAuditor@cityofboston.gov.
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Statement of Net Position
June 30,2014

(Amounts in thousands)
Primary Government

Governmental Component
Activities Units
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and investments S 1,360,267 S 98,481
Cash and investments held by trustees. 69,539 2,571
Receivables, net:
Property and other taxes 22,709 -
Intergovernmental... 117,098 -
25,921 53,638
1,414 1,004
Due from primary government.. - 252
Due from component UNitsS...........eeeeeeeeeeeemeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 1,692 -
Total current @ssetsS......cuvuueeeeeieeriieeeeeeeeiiee e eervieee s 1,598,640 155,946
Noncurrent Assets:
Intergovernmental receivables........cccccccc 28,353 -
Cash and investments held by Trustee.. - 58,321
Notes and other receivables.. 89,325 167,692

Other assets . - 320
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable.. 214,864 30,404
Depreciable, net. 1,531,190 51,183
Due from component units 12,306 -
Total noncurrent assets... - 1,876,038 307,920
Total assets 3,474,678 463,866
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred amount from debt refunding...........ccccceeeiiinnnne. 6,435 -
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Warrants and accounts payable.... 139,019 25,621
Accrued liabilities - current:
Compensated absences.. 53,871 -
Judgments and claims. 82,196 -
Payroll and related costs... 181,812 -
Deposits and other... 86,671 10,892
Unearned revenue 8,959 4,801
Current portion of long-term debt and leases..................... 124,715 1,769
Due to component units 252 -
Due to primary government - 1,692
Total current liabilities.....ccceeevevviieeeeeeeiceee e, 677,495 44,775
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds due in more than one year..........cccceeeuuveeeeennunneeennn. 1,189,238 15,363
Notes and leases payable due in more than one year.. 103,767 -
Other noncurrent liabilities. 249,103 148,825
Other postemployment benefits obligation.. 656,343 79,372
Unearned revenue - 61,754
Due to primary government - 12,306
Total noncurrent liabilities. . 2,198,451 317,620
Total liabilities 2,875,946 362,395
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred amount from debt refunding...........cccceeeeiinnnnn. 2,039 -
NET POSITION:
Netinvestmentin capital @ssets........ccccevvurieiiiniiiieeiinninneeennn. 457,789 54,284
Restricted for:
Nonexpendable trust.... 4,974 67,795
Expendable trust.. 39,897 -
Capital projects.... 17,830 -
UNFE@SEIICEE. .. i 82,638 (20,608)
Total net position S 603,128 s 101,471

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Amounts in thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating
Charges for Grants and Capital Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:
General government..............cuveeeen... S 161,913 S 33,649 S 9,020 S 2,440
Human services......cocvvveviiiiniiinninennnn. 49,291 9 10,164 3
Publicsafety......cccooeeviiiiiiiiiiiiiinnn. 821,196 139,431 35,493 114
Public Works........cccevuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiies 157,491 19,165 4,944 4,271
Property and development................ 118,816 6,858 61,680 3,892
Parks and recreation...........cccceevneunenn. 32,297 437 1,199 20
Library....oooooe i 52,192 805 2,046 76
SChOOIS.. i, 1,554,563 2,832 458,793 1,156
Public health programs..................... 69,896 53 141 -
Interest on long-term debt................. 48,188 - - -
Total primary government............. S 3,065,843 S 203,239 S 583,480 S 11,972
Component Units:
Boston Public Health Commission........... 170,048 44,206 45,267 280
Boston Redevelopment Authority 23,273 9,406 8,788 -
Trustees of the Public Library of
the City of Boston.......cccceevvvveiniennennnns 9,838 1,725 13,036 -
Economic Development and
Industrial Corporation of Boston.......... 31,101 18,725 16,457 -
Total component units ..........cc...... S 234,260 S 74,062 S 83,548 S 280
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes.......cccoeveviieiiieieiiiiiiiiieecis
{2 ol =TT PP PPPPPRt
Payments in lieU Of taXesS ..o
Grants and contributions not restricted..........ccooveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii
INVESTMENT INCOME. ...ttt e
(1} AVAFT o] oY o] o] -1 4 1o s U ORI
MIESCEITANEOUS. ...ttt ettt e e et e et e et e e e et e eenanns
Special item - gainonsale of land.........cooiiiiiiiiii i

Total general revenues....
Change iN Net POSItION....cccuiiieiieiiciticrcrecrcreerecresseesesssnssenssenssannsans
Net position - beginning of year, as restated (Note 2n)........cccccveeirieniiiannnnenes

Net position - @Nd Of Year....c.ciuiieiiiiiiiiiiicricricreceeseeee e reeeenesensenssnsesnnesanes

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements



Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in

Net Position
Governmental

Activities Component Units
$ (116,804) $ -
(39,115) -
(646,158) -
(129,111) -
(46,386) -
(30,641) -
(49,265) -
(1,091,782) -
(69,702) -
(48,188) -
(2,267,152) -

- (80,295)

- (5,079)

- 4,923

- 4,081

- (76,370)

1,771,166 -
220,761 -
73,324 -
199,007 -
16,713 968

- 66,757

4,012 9,548

- 4,260

2,284,983 81,533
17,831 5,163
585,297 96,308

S 603,128 S 101,471

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2014
(Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and investments..........ceeeeeeiieiiiiiinnnnnnnnne.
Cash and investments held by trustees
Receivables, net:
Property and othertaxes.........cccceeeevevvnnens
Intergovernmental.........ccccveiiiiiiiiiineeennnnnnn.
Departmental and other.........ccccvvvcieeeennns
Total receivables...........oevveeeiiiiiiiiiinnnnn.
Due from other funds.....
Due from component units........ccceeeeeeeeeeiennnee
Total assets......ccceeeeeeennnnccieennenennnnns

LIABILITIES
Warrants and accounts payable..........ccccccco......
Accrued liabilities:
Payroll and related costs.......cccceeeeeeeeeeeennnees
Deposits and other......cccceeeeeiieiviiiiiiiiieeeeens
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds
Due to component unit........ccccccceieininiiiiiiiininn.
Total liabilities......ccccccuuveeiiinnnnns

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Revenue not considered available.........
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable.........cceeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciine e,
X d g Lot =T PSRN
ASSIBNE. it
UNassigNed.....cccuueieiiiie e

Total fund balances.........ccccevvvvveennncieenns
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances..................

Other Total
Special Capital Governmental Governmental
General Revenue Projects Funds Funds
S 1,005,420 S 163,496 S 86,084 S 5,591 S 1,260,591
1,325 7,244 60,970 69,539
22,709 - - - 22,709
50,216 77,040 18,195 - 145,451
25,139 60,084 611 29,412 115,246
98,064 137,124 18,806 29,412 283,406
1,259 2,963 14,059 7,298 25,579
13,998 - - - 13,998
S 1,120,066 S 303,583 S 126,193 S 103,271 S 1,653,113
S 59,800 S 32,379 S 35,569 S 9,659 S 137,407
178,308 3,504 - - 181,812
26,868 41,539 - - 68,407
- 8,959 - - 8,959
1,799 2,423 4,075 17,282 25,579
252 - - - 252
S 267,027 S 88,804 S 39,644 S 26,941 S 422,416
68,731 119 18,195 - 87,045
$ 68,731 $ 119 $ 18,195 $ - S 87,045
- - - 4,974 4,974
- 59,993 68,354 71,356 199,703
251,353 154,667 - - 406,020
532,955 - - - 532,955
784,308 214,660 68,354 76,330 1,143,652
$ 1,120,066 S 303,583 S 126,193 $ 103,271 $ 1,653,113

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014
(Amounts in thousands)

Total fund balance - governMEeNtal fUNMS........ceu ittt sirreeeserenessssenssssenssssssnsssssnnssssensssssnnssssennss ) 1,143,652

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in

in the governmental fund financial StateMENTS........iiiiii e e e e e e e e e a e aes 1,746,054
Certain revenues of the government-wide financial statements are earned but not considered available

in the governmental funds and are, therefore, reported as deferred inflows of resources.......c.c..cccvveeeiiiiinrennnnns 87,045
Internal service funds are included in the government-wide financial statements.........ccccocviiieiiieieiiiie e, 75,163

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Those liabilities consist of:

General obligation DONAS @Nd NOTES....ciuuui i e e et e e et s e e eaa e e e etaa s eeean e eeeanneeeenns (1,269,535)
[ o 11 = |l =TT ORI PPTRRNN (45,887)
Bond issue premiums/diSCOUNTS, NET......iuuiuuiiiee ettt e e e ettt e e e e e e eee ittt aas e e e eeeeeesaaasaeeeeeeeesasnnnnaaeeaaaeaees (102,298)
Deferred bond refunding 10SSES/GaiN, NET........uiiii it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeesataaaaaas 4,396
J Yoo g T=Te T g N =Y X o o T o Yo Ve [P (18,261)
(0o Y00 T o T=Y A TY- 14 =T BT e XY= T LN (190,369)
[T o Lo ) | PO PP PPPPPPPRPRRt (7,951)
0T =0 Y=Y o A3 T T ol -1 15 o 1 USRI (162,038)
Other PosteMPloYMENT DENETITS. oot et e et e e et e e e e aaee e e et e s eeeaneaees (656,343)
(o] UL TeY o W =TaaT=Te L= e o TR PP (500)
(2,448,786)

Net position of 2overnmMental aCtiVities. ... i iiiieiiiiiceiirieireer e eereeeeereenseerensssssnssesssnsssssnnssssenssssennssssennsnns s 603,128

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2014
(Amounts in thousands)

Other Total
Special Governmental Governmental
General Revenue Capital Projects Funds Funds
REVENUES:
Real and personal property taxes.......ccccveeeeeruvneennn. S 1,767,783 S - S - S - S 1,767,783
EX IS S ittt 223,133 - - - 223,133
Payments in lieu of taxes........cceveviiiiiiiiiiiiinieeiiinns 73,324 - - - 73,324
FiNES e 59,922 30 - - 59,952
INVeStMENt iNCOME.....iviiiiie s 57 17 - 6,434 6,508
Licenses and permits........uuuuuueeeeeeeeerereeninieniiianeeeaaens 62,257 68 - - 62,325
Departmental and other.......cccooveeviievieiiiiiiiiieee e 84,385 46,626 45 6,310 137,366
Intergovernmental........ccouuuuiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeiiceee e 509,199 276,837 18,253 - 804,289
Total revenUES........ccieeeeieieeeeiinteneienneeneeeennenens 2,780,060 323,578 18,298 12,744 3,134,680
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General overnmMent......cccovevvvivieeeeiiie e eenaans 102,786 5,244 - 5,713 113,743
HUMAN SEIVICES..cuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et 31,358 7,847 - - 39,205
Public safety.......uceeeeeeeieiiiieeiiccee e 558,802 37,437 - - 596,239
PUBIICWOIKS...euiieeieieieeeeece e 113,239 14,464 - - 127,703
Property and development.......ccccceeeeeeieieeeennnnnnen. 33,376 74,395 - - 107,771
Parks and recreation...........cccueeeieeiiieeevini e 19,792 1,145 - - 20,937
LiDrary..oooeeeeeeece e 33,978 2,048 - - 36,026
SCROOIS. .ttt 940,276 151,623 - - 1,091,899
Public health programs.......ccccceeeeviiiiiiiiiiinieeininns 65,953 2,744 - - 68,697
Judgments and claims.... 9,493 - - - 9,493
Retirement CoStS....vviiiiiiiiiiiieens 255,647 - - - 255,647
Other employee benefits......cccccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeerinnnnn. 234,400 - - - 234,400
State and district assessments... 197,939 - - - 197,939
Capital OULIAYS..cooeeeeeeiiieiiiiiciee e 1,106 1,380 177,991 68,387 248,864
[D7=Y o] Y=Y VAol RPN 147,548 6,367 - - 153,915
Total expenditures......ccceceeereeeieirenninernecennanes 2,745,693 304,694 177,991 74,100 3,302,478
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures..........ccceeveuneennenennennennns 34,367 18,884 (159,693) (61,356) (167,798)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Long-term debt and capital leases issued... - 3,200 175,244 - 178,444
Premiums on long-term debt issued.......ccccccceeennnn. - 172 17,000 - 17,172
TraNSTErs iN cuuei e - - - 61,224 61,224
Transfers out (1,455) - (59,769) - (61,224)
Total other financing sources (uses) (1,455) 3,372 132,475 61,224 195,616
Net change in fund balances.........cccccceeeeenennns 32,912 22,256 (27,218) (132) 27,818
Fund balance - beginning of year, as restated (Note 2n) 751,396 192,404 95,572 76,462 1,115,834
Fund balance - end of year.........cccceceeeeereecccceeeeecccineens 5 784,308 S 214,660 S 68,354 S 76,330 $ 1,143,652

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2014
(Amounts in thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental fuNds.........ccceiiiiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiirrr e rese s resessennnes S 27,818

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the statement

of activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated over their estimated useful
lives. Capital outlays ($219,438) and gain on disposals ($109)
exceeded depreciation eXPENSE (S101,544).....ccuiiiiiiiiiiii et a e e e e e aaaaaaaaa e 118,003

Certain revenues in the statement of activities that are not reported as revenues in the
governmental funds as they are not considered available.............oooiiiiiiiiiii e (36,486)

Issuances of long-term debt ($175,244) and notes ($3,200) increase long-term liabilities in the
statement of net position, but are included in the operating statement of the
governmental funds. Repayment of bond, note, and lease principal ($123,499)
are expenditures in the governmental funds, but reduce long-term liabilities in the statement
of net position. This is the amount by which issuances exceed repayments and

(oI gl A o F- 1Y 4 1 1=T o} TSP P PP PP PPPPRN (54,945)
Bond premiums net ($7,577) increase the long-term liabilities in the statement of

net position, but are included in the operating statement of the governmental

funds. Deferred loss on refunding, net ($1,635) increase deferred outflows, net

statement of net position, but are included in the operating statement of the

L= oV Z=Y T 0 =Y =1 I 8 o Vo KPS (9,212)
Certain intergovernmental revenues decrease receivables on the statement of net position,

but are included in the operating statement of governmental funds..........cccovieiiiiiiiiiiiiin e (8,571)
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of

current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the

governmental funds. This amount represents the increase in liabilities for

compensated absences ($9,086), other postemployment benefits ($16,610)

workers compensation ($13,613), and interest payable ($7,854) offset by a decrease in liabilities

for landfill closure and post closure costs ($167) and judgments and claims ($20,042)..........cccceeeeeeeeecccccnnnnnn. (26,954)
Net income from the internal service fund, which is presented in the statement

of activities, but notin the governmental fUNAS..........oii i e e eeanes 8,178

S 17,831

Change in net position of governmental activities....

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

Budgetary Basis

General Fund - Budget and Actual
Year Ended June 30, 2014 (with comparative actual amounts for 2013)
(Amounts in thousands)

2014
Favorable
Original (Unfavorable)
Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 2013 Actual
REVENUES AND OTHER AVAILABLE FUNDS:
Real and personal property taxes, net................... S 1,743,923 S 1,743,923 S 1,744,904 S 981 S 1,643,367
[T Cel EY =S 180,822 180,822 218,863 38,041 209,580
Commonwealth of Massachusetts......................... 409,211 409,211 422,403 13,192 403,275
Departmental and other revenue.............cceeenn..e. 58,675 58,675 75,525 16,850 68,502
FIN S i 58,955 58,955 59,604 649 59,475
Payments in lieu of taxes 63,269 63,269 73,837 10,568 71,372
Investment income..... 175 175 57 (118) 179
Licenses and permits 40,460 40,460 59,162 18,702 45,574
Otheravailable funds.........cccoeeviiiiiiiiieeee, 57,307 57,307 - (57,307) 3,023
Total revenues and other available funds... 2,612,797 2,612,797 2,654,355 41,558 2,504,347
EXPENDITURES:

General government.......cceevveeevieieiieeeie e 103,809 92,337 90,039 2,298 105,764
HUMaN SEeIVICeS. ..o 32,008 31,183 31,134 49 30,667
Publicsafety....cccooiiiieiiiiiiie e 537,236 555,939 576,618 (20,679) 531,682
PUBliCWOIKS...ceuiiiiicie e 107,173 108,275 112,615 (4,340) 103,926
Property and development.......ccccccueeeivveiinennnnnnn. 30,614 33,889 33,843 46 32,981
Parks and recreation..........ccceeeveieiieiiiiieieeieene, 19,194 19,958 19,796 162 19,301
[ o =Y V2P 32,460 33,076 33,076 - 31,069
SCROOIS . 937,413 937,962 937,949 13 881,203
Boston Public Health Commission.. 66,504 66,757 66,757 - 67,041
Judgments and claims.......cccceeeiieiiiieeiieee e 3,500 3,500 13,470 (9,970) 11,976
Other employee benefits......cccccvviiiiiiiiiiiieennnn, 244,677 240,900 240,825 75 233,985
Retirement costs.............. 157,115 153,180 153,115 65 141,111
Debt requirements.....c.coeveeiieiiieiiniiieie e 144,783 137,902 137,706 196 129,122
State and district assessments.........ccccceeeeeieneeninnnnn. 196,311 197,939 197,939 - 176,300
Total expenditures.......ccccveeieieeiienienieecneniencennnes 2,612,797 2,612,797 2,644,882 (32,085) 2,496,128

Excess of revenues and other available
funds over expenditures..........ccceeeeerreennnnnnn. S - S - S 9,473 S 9,473 s 8,219

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements



Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2014,
(Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS:
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents............cceoviiiiiiiiiiniinennn.
Total current assets.......ccceeeerreennceerenencenennnnnns

Noncurrent assets:

Otherassets....oouiieiiiiiiieei e aeanes
Total noncurrent assets.....c.ccceveeireieecrannennnes
Total assets...ccccieiieiieiieieniniiernieiienieceecaniennees

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:

Warrants and accounts payable.........................
Accrued liabilities .....ccccoeviiiiiiiiiir e
Total current liabilities......ccccceceeiieniinnrannnnn...

NET POSITION:

Unrestricted. ... coooeniiiiiiii e
Total net Position......c.cveeiieiiiiiiiiieiiiieccreeanes

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Internal Service

99,676

99,676

1,414

1,414

101,090

1,615
24,312

25,927

75,163

75,163
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses

and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2014
(Amounts in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Employee contributions........cccccoecvviveenenn.
Employer contributions........cc.ccceevverieennnnne
Total operating revenues...........ccceveueee

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Health benefits......coovvvvveveveiriiiiiiiieieeeeeee,

Total operating eXPenses......cceeeeeeeernneereeeeerssnnnens
Operating iNCOME.......ccvceenennnnnnsnnnnsssssssssssasesssenen

Change in net position........ccccceeeeeeccvneeeeeneccsssennens
Net position - beginning of year.......c.ccccceveveereicenricrnnnnn.
Net position - end of year........cccccevvireiiinnnnnninseniissennnnns

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Internal Service

S 57,932
253,122
311,054

302,876
302,876
8,178

8,178
66,985

S 75,163
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Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2014
(Amounts in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from employees and employer....................
Cash paid tO VENAOrS.....ccuiiiiiiiiieeieee e

Net cash provided by operating activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents........ccccccerveennnnaes
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year........................
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year........cccceveeeereeniiiennnnnes

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPerating iNCOME ....c.iieiiiieee et
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable ..
Other assets.....cccuuuiiiieiieiiiiiie e
Due from other funds and component units.
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...................
Net cash provided by operating activities..................

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Internal Service

S 323,409
(301,886)

21,523

21,523
78,153

$ 99,676

S 8,178

7,351

3,430

5,004
(2,440)

$ 21,523
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Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2014

(Except Employee Retirement Plan, which is year ended December 31, 2013)
(Amounts in thousands)

Employee Private-
Retirement Purpose Agency
Plan OPEB Trust Fund Trusts Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents..........cccccoveeieeiiiiini e, S 174,657 S 2,218 S 99,117 S 8,656
Receivables:
Interest and dividends...........ccevvveiiiiiiiiiene e, 6,971 - -
SECUNTIES SOIT.uuiieiiiiiie e 25,154 - - -
Employer contributions........cceeeeviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieecccceeee e, 11,844 - - -
(011 o 1<) RN 7,592 - 1,275 -
Total receivables.......ccooeiivvieiiiiiiieieiiiieeeeeee, 51,561 - 1,275 -
Investments, at fair value:
Short-term:
1570 4 1K« [ RPN 58,289 - - -
International........ccoevveeiiiiiiiiii 8,770 - - -
Equity:
DOMESTIC. . eiiiiiiiiriiieieeeeete e e e e e e e e sessarerrrrerereeeaeeeeeee s 1,116,781 101,092 - -
International.........cccooeveiiiiiiiicccee e 1,008,692 36,129 - -
Fixed-income:
DOMESTIC. it 694,066 92,339 - -
International........ooeeveiiiiiiiii e, 230,413 - - -
PRIT Pooled FUNG.....cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeecee e 1,346,939 - - -
[T =K £ | (N 346,517 - - -
Venture capital funds..........oovviiiiiiieiiiieieeeceeee e 521,093 - - -
Al @SSt FUNd...uueiiieiii e - 56,137 - -
Total iNVeSTMENTS.....uciiieiiiieieeeceeee e 5,331,560 285,697 - -
Securities lending short-term
collateral investment pool........ccccooiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 185,269 - - -
Total assets......cceviiiiiiiiiiisisisssssnnnnnnnennnenneneninnenene 5,743,047 287,915 100,392 8,656
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities........ccccoovviiiiiiiiiiiiiis 14,745 98 918 8,656
Securities purchased..........c..uuuceiieieiieeeceeeceee e 51,466 - - -
Collateral held on securities lending........ccccoeeevvviiieiiiiiinnnen. 185,639 - - -
Total liabilities.....ccccereeeucriieiiirinneeenesieseienieeeeennes 251,850 98 918 8,656
NET POSITION
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes.......... $ 5,491,197 S 287,817 S 99,474 S -

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements



Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Except Employee Retirement Plan, which is year ended December 31, 2013)

(Amounts in thousands)

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
EMPIOYEIS. itiiieiticieie et
Commonwealth of Massachusetts.........c.cccoocvervinene
EMPIOYEES. ..ot e
Donations and other.......cccovvveveneeceneseee e
Total contributions.........cccoevernniienseniiennnsieinnnns
Investment earnings:
Realized and unrealized gains on investments.........
INVestMeNntinCoOMEe......covvirieeieree e
Less investment eXPenSes......ueveveeeereneenienieennene
Netinvestment earnings........cccoeeeriineeriirenesisanees
Securities lending activities:
Securities lending income.........cococveeiiivieecieecinee,
Less borrower rebates and fees
Net income from securities lending activities.....
Total netinvestmentincome..........cecerverreecnernns
Intergovernmental........ccoceviieeneneenenecrene e
Total additions.......cccoveeeeeireicensnscnssnncnessnssensnnes

DEDUCTIONS:
BENEItS. it
ReimMbUISEMENTS....cceeiiriiriiericeeeeee e
Refunds of contributions..........ccccevveevenenienineininen
Administrative expenses and other..........ccccevvverenenen.
Total deductions..........cceverveniiinenssnnsnssessanssnnsnens
Change in net assets......c.cccecveeenercinncnnercsenssnenenns
Net position - beginning of year.........ccccceeeeervercneecsencennns
Net position - end of year......c.cccceververcrercsencseencescseesnen.

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Employee Private-
Retirement OPEB Trust Purpose
Plan Fund Trusts
S 188926 $§ 157,585 -
99,532 - -
136,612 - -
- - 15,636
425,070 157,585 15,636
112,225 31,360 5,830
599,794 4,886 5,822
(21,060) (452) -
690,959 35,794 11,652
1,590 - -
(423) - -
1,167 - -
692,126 35,794 11,652
9,258 - -
1,126,454 193,379 27,288
508,689 115,335 -
10,946 - -
18,132 - -
8,001 6 25,351
545,768 115,341 25,351
580,686 78,038 1,937
4,910,511 209,779 97,537
$ 5491,197 $ 287,817 99,474

Fund Financial Statements ¢ A-29
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

1. The Financial Reporting Entity
a. Primary Government
The City of Boston (the City), incorporated as a town in 1630 and as a city in 1822, now exists under
Chapter 486 of the Act of 1909 and Chapter 452 of the Acts of 1948 of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts (the Commonwealth), which, as amended, constitute the City’s Charter. The Mayor is
elected to a four-year term and serves as chief executive officer of the City. The Mayor has general
supervision of and control over the City’s boards, commissions, officers, and departments. The
legislative body of the City is the City Council, which consists of 13 elected members serving two-year
terms.

The accompanying basic financial statements present the City and its component units. The component
units discussed below are included in the City’s reporting entity because of the significance of their
operational or financial relationships with the City.

b. Blended Component Units Disclosure

The State-Boston Retirement System (SBRS) is a defined benefit contributory retirement system
created under state statute. It is administered by a Retirement Board comprising five members: the
City Auditor, who serves ex officio; two individuals elected by participants in the system; a fourth
member appointed by the Mayor; and a fifth member chosen by the other members. The SBRS
provides pension benefits to retired City, Boston Redevelopment Authority, Boston Housing
Authority, Boston Water and Sewer Commission, and the Boston Public Health Commission
employees. Although legally separate, the SBRS provides services entirely, or almost entirely, to the
City and thus has been reported as a blended component unit among the City’s fiduciary funds. The
financial statements of SBRS are included for its fiscal year end which is December 31, 2013.

Dudley Square Realty Corporation (DSRC) and Ferdinand Building Development Corporation
(FBDC) — The DSRC is a Qualified Active Low-Income Community Business, and is the owner and
developer of the Dudley Municipal Center property. FBDC is the leverage lender of the Dudley
Municipal Center property. Upon completion of the Dudley Municipal Center, FBDC will lease the
property from DSRC and the City will sublease the property from FBDC. The DSRC and FBDC are
non-profit organizations qualified as tax-exempt entities under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Both entities are instrumentalities of the City, as the Mayor has full control of
appointments to their boards of directors. Although legally separate, both DSRC and FBDC provide
services entirely, or almost entirely, to the City and thus have been reported as blended
component units. These funds are presented as non-major funds within the other governmental
funds as of their fiscal year end, which is June 30, 2014.
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Discretely Presented Component Units Disclosure

These component units are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate
from the City but are included because the City is financially accountable for the organizations, meaning
it appoints, at a minimum, a voting majority of the board of directors of the organization and is able to
impose its will on the organizations or has a financial benefit or burden relationship with the
organizations. Unless otherwise indicated, the Notes to the Financial Statements pertain only to the
primary government because certain disclosures of the component units are not significant relative to
the total component units and to the primary government. A description of the component units,
criteria for inclusion, and their relationship with the City are as follows:

i. Boston Redevelopment Authority (BRA) — The BRA is a public body politic and corporate
constituting the City’s redevelopment authority and exercising the powers of a planning board for
the City. The BRA is governed by a five-member board, four of whom are appointed by the Mayor.
Its purpose is to provide planning support for major construction and redevelopment activity in the
City.

ii. Economic Development and Industrial Corporation of Boston (EDIC) — The EDIC is a body politic
and corporate and an instrumentality of the Commonwealth. It is governed by the same persons
appointed as members of the BRA board. The EDIC has various powers to assist industrial
development projects in the City and, together with the BRA, assists the City with its economic
development function.

iii. Boston Public Health Commission (PHC) — The PHC is a body politic and corporate and public
instrumentality of the Commonwealth, established by Chapter 147 of the Acts of 1995. PHC is
governed by a seven-member board, six of whom are appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by
the City Council, and one of whom is the chief executive officer of the Boston Medical Center
(BMC). The PHC is responsible for the implementation of public health programs in the City.

iv. Trustees of the Public Library of the City of Boston (TPL) — The TPL is a nonprofit organization
qualified as a tax-exempt entity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Trustees of
TPL are appointed by the Mayor. The TPL was established to benefit the public library system of the
City.

The financial statements of the discretely presented component units are included for their respective
fiscal year ends, which is June 30, 2014.

Complete financial statements of these discretely presented component units can be obtained through
the City Auditor’s office, Room M-4, City Hall Plaza, Boston, Massachusetts 02201. In addition,
condensed financial statements for the discretely presented component units are included in note 20.

Related Organizations

The Mayor is also responsible for appointing members of the governing bodies of the Boston Housing
Authority, Boston Industrial Development Finance Authority, and Boston Water and Sewer Commission;
however, the City’s accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond making these
appointments.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting policies of the City conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to
governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The following is
a summary of the more significant policies followed by the City:

a.

b.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The Government-wide Financial Statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from any business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges for support. The City currently reports no business-type activities. Likewise, the
primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the
primary government is financially accountable.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, and Fiduciary
Funds, even though the latter are excluded from the Government-wide Financial Statements. Major
individual Governmental Funds are reported as separate columns in the Fund Financial Statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

i. Government-wide Financial Statements

The Government-wide Financial Statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the Proprietary Fund and Fiduciary
Fund Financial Statements. The Agency Fund within the Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements has no
measurement of results. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements for recognition have been met.

ii. Governmental Fund Financial Statements
Governmental Fund Financial Statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are “susceptible to accrual” (i.e., both measurable and available). Revenues not considered
to be available are recorded as deferred inflows of resources.



The City applies the susceptible to accrual criteria to property and other taxes and
intergovernmental revenues. In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental
revenues, there are essentially two types of revenues. In one, resources must be expended on the
specific purpose or project before any amounts will be reimbursed to the City; therefore, revenues
are recognized based upon the amount of expenditures incurred subject to availability
requirements. In the other, resources are virtually unrestricted and are usually revocable by the
grantor only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are
reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met.
Property and other taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which taxes have been levied or
earned, provided they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Generally, intergovernmental
revenues are recognized as revenue provided they are earned during the year and collected within
one year after year-end, except for Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) and Chapter
90 receivables which are considered available when received.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to long-term liabilities including compensated
absences, other postemployment benefits, workers’ compensation and judgments and claims, are
recorded only when payment is mature and due.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from the provision of services. The principal
operating revenues of the City’s Internal Service Funds are receipts from employer and employees
for health insurance premiums. Operating expenses for the Internal Service Fund include
administrative expenses, vendor payments, and health benefits. Any revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Description of Major Funds
Governmental funds — The City reports the following major governmental funds:

1. The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

2. The Special Revenue Fund accounts principally for the activities funded by federal and state
grant revenue sources and certain other revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures
for specified purposes.

3. The Capital Projects Fund accounts for bond proceeds and grant revenues used for the
acquisition or construction of the City’s capital facilities.

Proprietary fund —The City reports the following proprietary fund:
4. The City uses an internal service fund to account for its self-insured health costs. Although
the fund is presented in a separate column in the accompanying proprietary fund financial
statements, it is not considered a major fund.

Fiduciary Funds — The City reports the following fiduciary fund types:

5. The Private-Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for
the benefit of individuals, private organizations, or other governments. The City operates
four pools used for the improvement of the City’s parks and cemeteries, educational
scholarships and sporting equipment, creation of public utility and beauty, and co-mingled
nontestamentary trusts.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ¢ A-33
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6. The Pension Trust Fund accounts principally for the activities of the State-Boston Retirement
System, a blended component unit, which accumulates resources for pension benefit
payments to retired employees of the City and other entities.

7. The OPEB Trust Fund is an irrevocable trust fund established for other postemployment
benefits. The assets are appropriated from the General Fund and accumulate to reduce the
unfunded actuarial liability for health care and other postemployment benefits. The assets
of the trust are currently not used for direct payments of benefits.

8. The Agency Funds are used to report funds held by the City in a purely custodial capacity.
The City currently operates a drug evidence account for proceeds of property seized from
illegal drug-related activities. These funds are then used to offset the costs of technical
equipment or expertise and investigations.

c. Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, investments with original maturities of three months or
less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

d. Basis of Investment Valuation
Investments are presented in the accompanying basic financial statements at fair value. Where
applicable, fair values are based on quotations from national securities exchanges, except for certain
investments of SBRS, which are described in notes5 and 11. Further, income from investments is
recognized in the same fund as the related investments.

The City invests in the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT), which is an external
investment pool and is not SEC-registered. The fund is state-regulated and is valued at current share
price.

e. Interfund Receivables and Payables
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”

f. Uncollectible Tax and Other Receivables
All receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Amounts considered to be uncollectible
are based on the type and age of the related receivable.

g. Capital Assets

Capital assets include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), and intangible assets such as easements, land use rights, computer
software, trademarks and patents. Capital assets are reported in the governmental activities column in
the Government-wide Financial Statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an
initial, individual cost of more than $25,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Any significant
construction commitments are encumbered at year-end in the City’s Capital Projects Fund.
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The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ useful lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 30
Building improvements 30
Infrastructure 30
Land improvements — major 30
Land improvements — playgrounds 15
Computer upgrades 10
Equipment and machinery 10
Intangible assets, computer software and licenses 5
Computers and related equipment 3
Furniture and fixtures 3
Motor vehicles 3

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted sick and vacation leave in varying amounts. Upon retirement, termination, or
death, certain employees are compensated for unused sick and vacation leave (subject to certain
limitations) at their then current rates of pay. The portion of the liability related to unused sick and
vacation time that has matured or is due as of June 30, 2014 is recorded in the Governmental Fund
Financial Statements. The entire amount of the liability is reported in governmental activities in the
Government-wide Financial Statements. The liability for vacation leave is based on the amount earned
but not used; for sick leave, it is based on the amount accumulated at the balance sheet date that would
be paid upon termination (vesting method). The liability for both amounts is calculated based on the pay
or salary rates in effect at the balance sheet date.

Long-Term Obligations and Related Costs

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the governmental activities
Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are capitalized and amortized over the life of
the bonds using the straight line method, which approximates the effective interest method. The
unamortized portion is presented in the Government-wide Statement of Net Position as a component of
bonds payable. Bond issuance costs are reported as expenses when incurred.

The Governmental Fund Financial Statements recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the period incurred. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts
on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from
the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Net Position and Fund Balance
In the Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements, net position is reported in the
following categories:

Net investment in capital assets: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and outstanding
principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets.
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Restricted: Net position the use of which is subject to constraints imposed by external parties,
including creditors, grantors, and laws and regulations of other governments, or imposed by City
Charter or enabling legislation. Nonexpendable amounts are required to remain intact under such
constraints.

Unrestricted: Remaining net position not considered net investment in capital assets or restricted.

For purposes of net position classification, when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available
for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are
needed.

In the Governmental Fund Financial Statements, fund balance is reported in the following categories:

Nonspendable: Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or
they are legally or contractually required to remain intact.

Restricted: Amounts the use of which is subject to constraints imposed by external parties, including
creditors, grantors, and laws and regulations of other governments, or imposed by City Charter or
enabling legislation.

Committed: Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed
by formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. For the City, this
formal action takes the form of statutes which are passed by the City Council and approved by the
Mayor.

Assigned: Amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent for use for specific purposes, but are
considered neither restricted or committed. Under M.G.L. Chapter 190, Acts of 1982, the City
Auditor has the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes on behalf of the City.

Unassigned: Amounts in the general fund that are not otherwise constrained for a specific purpose
more narrow than the general operations of the City. The City maintains a formal policy that
unassigned fund balance in the General Fund be at least 15 percent of the current year’s General
Fund GAAP basis operating expenditures.

For purposes of fund balance classification, when both restricted and unrestricted resources are
available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as
they are needed. When unrestricted resources are used, committed resources are used first, followed
by assigned and unassigned resources, respectively.

k. Tax Abatement Refunds
Matured tax abatement refunds that are due and payable at June 30 have been recorded as a liability in
the General Fund. A liability for estimated future tax abatement refunds have been recorded in the
Government-wide Statement of Net Position.
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Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

State and federal regulations require the City to place a final cover on its Gardner Street landfill site
when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site
for 30 years after closure. At June 30, 2014, 100% of the Gardner Street landfill site had been used and
has not accepted solid waste for several years. While most of the landfill closure construction was
completed in prior years, there still remains 12 acres of the landfill to be capped as of June 30, 2014.

The total current cost of landfill closure and postclosure care is an estimate, subject to changes resulting
from inflation, deflation, technology, or other changes in applicable laws or regulations. Such costs are
recognized as expenditures in the General Fund to the extent that they are due or matured and are
expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources. The total liability is reported in the
Government-wide Statement of Net Position. Expenditures related to the Gardner Street landfill site
postclosure care in fiscal year 2014 were $167 thousand.

. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the accompanying basic financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

n. Restatements
Implementation of GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities

Effective July 1, 2013, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities. This statement requires reclassification, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows
of resources, of certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognition, as
current period outflows of resources or inflows of resources, of certain items that were previously
reported as assets or liabilities. The City has restated net position of the governmental activities at July
1, 2013 to reflect the retrospective recognition of bond issuance costs as outflows of resources that
were previously reported as other assets and restated beginning fund balance of the Special Revenue
Fund at July 1, 2013 to reflect the elimination of loans receivable from deferred revenue.

Change in Accounting Principle

In fiscal 2014, as part of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation, the City changed the manner in which the
projected unit credit actuarial cost method was applied to estimate the other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) liability. Under the current application, the City accrues OPEB benefits earned over the estimated
working life of the employee. Previously, the benefits earned were accrued through the date of initial
benefit eligibility. Such change was made to achieve greater comparability with other municipalities
within the Commonwealth. The change in methodology was retroactively applied to past actuarial
valuations to re-estimate the net OPEB obligation of the City and PHC, a participating employer in the
OPEB plan, at June 30, 2013. The net positions of the governmental activities and PHC (aggregate
discretely presented component units) at July 1, 2013 have been restated to reflect this change.

The following represents the effect of the restatements described above (in thousands):
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Economic
Special Boston Public ~ Development
Governmental Revenue Health Industrial
Activities Fund Commission Corp.
Beginning Net Position/Fund Balance, as previously reported 600,297 132,889 (12,262) 31,349
Implementation of GASB Statement No. 65 (7,275) 59,515 - -
Change in accounting for other postemployment benefits (7,725) - 7,811 -
Other prior period adjustments - - - (939)
Beginning Net Position/Fund Balance, as restated 585,297 192,404 (4,451) 30,410

3. Short-Term Debt
During fiscal year 2014, the City had no short-term debt issued or outstanding.

4. Budgetary Data
The General Fund is the only fund for which a budget is legally adopted. The budgets for all departments
included in the General Fund of the City, except the School Department, are prepared under the direction of
the Mayor and City Council. The School Department budget is prepared under the direction of the School
Committee.

Original and supplemental appropriations are submitted by the Mayor, approved by the City Council, and
lapse at year-end unless encumbered. The legal level of control over appropriations is at the department
level. Amendments to the original budget must be approved by the City Council, except for a reallocation of
appropriations of up to $3.0 million, which the Mayor may approve. Further, the City Auditor, with the
approval of the Mayor, may make transfers from any appropriation to any other appropriation for purposes
of eliminating deficits before closing the books for the fiscal year. After the close of the fiscal year, the City
Auditor may, with the approval of the Mayor, apply any income, taxes, and funds not disposed of and make
transfers from any appropriation to any other appropriation for the purpose of closing the accounts for the
fiscal year.

The City must establish its property tax rate each year so that the resulting property tax levy will comply
with the limits required by Proposition 2-1/2 (note 6). The tax levy must equal the sum of (a) the aggregate
of all annual appropriations for expenditures; plus (b) the reserve accounts described in the following
paragraph; plus (c) provision for the prior fiscal years’ deficits, if any; less (d)the aggregate of all
nonproperty tax revenues projected to be received by the City, including available funds, in amounts
certified or approved by the Commonwealth for tax rate purposes.

In accordance with the 1986 amendments to the Funding Loan Act of 1982, the City has established two
reserve funds. The first is a budget reserve fund, which is required to be funded in stages to a final level of
2-1/2% of the prior year’s overall departmental appropriations, except the School Department, by the
beginning of fiscal year 1990. It is available to be applied to extraordinary and unforeseen expenditures. The
second is a separate reserve fund of 1% to 2-1/2% of the current year appropriation of the School
Department to be applied to over expenditures in that department.
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The City’s General Fund budget is prepared on a basis other than accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP). The “actual” results column in the Statement of Revenues and
Expenditures — Budgetary Basis — General Fund is presented on a “budgetary basis” to provide a meaningful
comparison of actual results with the budget. The major differences between the budget and GAAP basis,
where applicable, are that:
i. Revenues are recorded when cash is received, except for real estate and personal property taxes,
which are recorded as revenue when levied (budget), as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).
ii. Encumbrances and continuing appropriations are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures
(budget) but have no effect on GAAP expenditures.
iii. Certain activities and transactions are presented in separate funds (GAAP), rather than as
components of the General Fund (budget).
iv. Amounts raised for the prior years’ deficits and available funds from prior years’ surpluses are
recorded as revenue items (budget), but have no effect on GAAP revenues.

In addition, there are certain differences in classifications between revenues, expenditures, and transfers.
The following reconciliation summarizes the differences between budgetary and GAAP basis accounting
principles for the year ended June 30, 2014 (in thousands):

Excess

(deficiency) of
revenue and

Other other
financing financing
Revenue Expenditures uses, net sources
As reported on a budgetary basis S 2,654,355 2,644,882 - 9,473
Adjustments:
Revenues to modified accrual
basis 26,173 - - 26,173
Expenditures, encumbrances, and
accruals, net - 2,734 - (2,734)
On-behalf contribution for
teachers pension 99,532 99,532 - -
Reclassifications:
Debt Service - (1,455) 1,455 -

As reported on a GAAP basis S 2,780,060 2,745,693 1,455 32,912
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5. Deposits and Investments

State and local statutes place certain limitations on the nature of deposits and investments available to the
City. Deposits, including demand deposits, money markets, and certificates of deposit in any one financial
institution, may not exceed 60% of the capital and surplus of such institution unless collateralized by the
financial institution involved. Investments from operating cash in the general fund may be made in
unconditionally guaranteed U.S. government obligations having maturities of a year or less from the date of
purchase, or through repurchase agreements with maturities of no greater than 90 days in which the
underlying securities consist of such obligations. Other allowable investments include authorized bonds of
all states, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications established
by rating agencies, and units in the MMDT. The highest commercial paper classifications for Moody’s and
Standard & Poor’s (S&P) are as follows:

Commercial Paper Credit Ratings

Moody's S&P
Superior Pl Al+or Al
Satisfactory p2 A2
Adequate P3 A3

The Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts oversees the financial management of the MMDT, a
local investment pool for cities, towns, and other state and local agencies within the Commonwealth. The
City’s fair value of its investment in the MMDT represents the value of the pool’s shares.

Primary Government (except the pension trust fund)

a. Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the City’s deposits or investments may
not be returned. The City carries deposits that are fully insured by FDIC insurance or collateralized in the
City’s name. As of June 30, 2014, there are no uncollateralized or uninsured cash accounts. All of the
City’s investments are held by third parties in the City’s name.

b. Investment Policy

The City’s primary concern in connection with its investment activities is a concern shared by all
municipal governments: the preservation of capital. The City’s investment policy establishes a discipline
in which all of the City’s investment activities may be safely conducted while it strives to use its capital
resources as efficiently as possible. The foundation of that discipline is fixed by Massachusetts General
Laws (M.G.L.) c. 44, sec.55, which prohibits Massachusetts communities from investing in certain
categories of high-risk investments; limits the amount of the City’s bank deposits in any one financial
institution; and establishes qualifying criteria for banking institutions. Further, all investments held by
third parties are to be held in the City’s name.
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c. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. It is the City of Boston Trust Funds’ policy to limit the average duration of an actively
managed fixed income portfolio to no more than seven years. The following is a listing of the City’s fixed
income investments (in thousands) and related maturity schedule (in years) as of June 30, 2014:

Investment type Fair value Lessthan1 1-5
External investment pool S 65,619 65,619 -
Money market mutual funds 220,689 220,689 -
U.S. Treasury notes and bonds 6,198 - 6,198
Domestic corporate 4,187 - 4,187
S 296,693 286,308 10,385

d. Credit Risk
It is the City of Boston Trust Funds’ policy that there shall be no specific limitation in regard to credit
worthiness of securities, except the overall average quality of each fixed income portfolio shall be AA or
better. The City’s fixed income investments as of June 30, 2014 were rated by S & P and/or an
equivalent national rating organization, and the ratings are presented below using the S & P rating scale
(in thousands):

Investment type Fair value Rating
Money market mutual funds S 220,689 Not Rated
External investment pool 65,519 Not Rated
Domestic corporate 4,187 AAAto B
S 290,395

e. Concentration Risk
The City adheres to the provisions of M.G.L. c. 44, sec. 55 when managing concentration risk. M.G.L.
c. 44, sec. 55 contains several restrictions limiting where and under what circumstances the City may
deposit its funds. No investments in a single issuer exceeded 5% of the City’s investment portfolio.

f. Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment or a deposit. As of June 30, 2014 the City of Boston Trust Funds held international equity
mutual funds valued at $46.6 million. Although this investment is not denominated in a foreign
currency, the underlying securities are denominated in various foreign currencies.

State-Boston Retirement System (SBRS or the System)

a. Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the System’s deposits may not be
returned. The System carries deposits that are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) insurance or collateralized with securities held by the System or the System’s agent
in the System’s name. As of December 31, 2013, all of the System’s deposits were insured or
collateralized.
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b. Investment Policy
The provisions of M.G.L. C. 32, Sec 23(2) govern the System’s investment practice. Diversification is
attained through varied investment management styles that comply with Massachusetts state law. This
is accomplished through the retention of investment managers that adhere to M.G.L. C. 32, Sec. 3(3),
the “Prudent Person” rule.

The System has retained an investment consultant to work with the Retirement Board in a fiduciary
capacity to assure that strategic investment diversification is attained, to employ investment managers
with expertise in their respective asset classes, and to closely monitor the implementation and
performance of the respective investment strategies.

The System is currently invested in stocks (domestic and foreign), fixed income securities (domestic and
foreign), real estate, private equity, PRIT and hedge funds.

c. Interest Rate Risk
The following is a listing of the System’s fixed income investments (in thousands) and related maturity
schedule (in years) as of December 31, 2013:

Less More
Investment type Fair value than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10

U.S. Treasury notes and bonds $ 77,139 7,130 42,444 10,317 17,248

U.S. agencies 61,495 - 745 836 59,914

Domestic corporate 466,434 18,251 57,775 148,075 242,333

Municipal 2,445 - 119 104 2,222

International corporate 196,440 2,014 12,366 17,209 164,851

International government 51,866 1,655 16,460 23,439 10,312
Asset-backed:

CMOs 35,688 - 749 4,412 30,527

Other 32,972 27 15,041 8,971 8,933

S 924,479 29,077 145,699 213,363 536,340

The System’s guidelines do not specifically address limits on maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The manager of each fixed income
portfolio is responsible for determining the maturity and commensurate returns of their portfolio.

The collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) held by the System as of December 31, 2013 are highly
sensitive to changes in interest rates.

d. Credit Risk
The System allows investment managers to apply discretion under the “Prudent Person” rule.
Investments are made, as a prudent person would be expected to act with discretion and intelligence, to
seek reasonable income, preserve capital, and, in general, avoid speculative investments.



The System’s fixed income investments as of December 31, 2013 were rated by S & P and/or an
equivalent national rating organization and the ratings are presented below (in thousands) using the S &
P rating scale:

Fair Not

Investment type value AAA AA A BBB BB B CCC rated
U.S. agencies S 61,495 - - 427 - - - - 61,068
Domestic corporate 466,434 955 13,387 78,197 45,078 48,523 59,210 1,746 219,338
Municipal 2,445 - 746 1,699 - - - - -
International corp. 196,440 1,052 2,866 11,293 9,468 6,438 3,210 - 162,113
International gov't 51,866 6,495 1,749 6,183 4,095 - - - 33,344

Asset-backed:

CMOs 35,688 13,113 1,399 385 1,153 - - - 19,639
Other 32,972 18,150 3,991 2,273 - - 12 - 8,545
S 847,340 39,765 24,138 100,457 59,794 54,961 62,432 1,746 504,047

In addition to the above schedule, the System has approximately $77.1 million invested in
U.S. government securities, which are not rated as they are explicitly guaranteed by the
U.S. government.

Concentration Risk
The System has no investments, at fair value, except for pooled funds, that exceed 5% of the System’s
total investments as of December 31, 2013.

The System adheres to the provisions of M.G.L. c. 32, sec. 23(2) when managing concentration risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment or a deposit. Similar to the investments in domestic equities, the System employs or
encourages its investment advisor to employ diversification, asset allocation, and quality strategies.

Risk of loss arises from changes in currency exchange rates. The System’s exposure to foreign currency
risk is presented on the following table (in thousands).

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ¢ A-43
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Cash and
short-term
Currency investments  Fixed income Equity Alternative Total
Australian dollar S 150 1,712 30,264 1,557 33,683
Brazilian real - 581 - - 581
Canadian dollar 203 2,546 3,719 - 6,468
Danish krone - - 11,753 - 11,753
Euro currency 7,637 21,782 213,531 7,399 250,349
Hong Kong dollar 116 - 24,069 - 24,185
Indonesian rupiah 12 - 519 - 531
Israeli Shekel 1 - 1,408 - 1,409
Japanese yen 432 10,745 117,149 304 128,630
Malaysian ringgit 280 1,116 726 - 2,122
Mexican peso 566 2,529 - - 3,095
New Taiwan dollar 117 - 2,215 - 2,332
New Zealand dollar 193 - - - 193
Norwegian krone 139 2,846 4,027 - 7,012
Philippine Peso - 703 - - 703
Polish zloty 197 626 - - 823
Pound sterling 195 6,071 142,360 685 149,311
Singapore dollar 71 785 8,437 - 9,293
South African rand 75 513 1,041 - 1,629
South Korean won 101 2,348 9,810 - 12,259
Swedish krona 97 159 15,587 - 15,843
Swiss franc 23 826 61,333 - 62,182
Thailand Baht 49 489 972 - 1,510
Turkish Lira 54 510 1,228 - 1,792
Total securities

subject to

foreign

currency risk S 10,708 56,887 650,148 9,945 727,688
U.S. dollars (securities

held by international
investment managers) - 34,161 36,614 - 70,775
Total international
investment
securities S 10,708 91,048 686,762 9,945 798,463

g. PRIT Pooled Fund
The Commonwealth enacted Chapter 112, Section 17 of the Acts of 2010 that requires the System to
invest all assets, current and future, related to Boston Teachers in the Pension Reserves Investment
Trust (PRIT) fund. The PRIT fund is an external investment pool that is not registered with the Securities
Exchange Commission.

The fair value of the PRIT fund is based on unit value as reported by management of the PRIT fund. The
PRIT fund issues separately available audited financial statements with a year end of June 30.

As of December 31, 2013, the System had $1.4 billion invested in the PRIT pooled fund.

h. Derivatives
The System trades financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of its investing
activities to assist in managing exposure to market risks. The System uses forward foreign currency
contracts to hedge against the risk of future foreign currency fluctuations.
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6. Property Taxes

Real and personal property taxes are based on values assessed as of each January 1. By law, all taxable
property must be assessed at 100% of fair cash value. Also by law, property taxes must be levied at least
30 days prior to their due date. Once levied, these taxes are recorded as receivables, net of estimated
uncollectible balances. Property tax revenues have been recorded using the accrual and modified accrual
basis of accounting as described in note 2.

The City bills and collects its property taxes on a quarterly basis following the January 1 assessment. The due
dates for those quarterly tax billings are August 1, November 1, February 1, and May 1. Property taxes that
remain unpaid after the respective due dates are subject to penalties and interest charges.

Based on the City’s experience, most property taxes are collected during the year in which they are
assessed. Liening of properties on which taxes remain unpaid occurs annually. On December 10, 2013, all
properties with unpaid fiscal year 2013 property taxes were liened. The City ultimately has the right to
foreclose on all properties where the taxes remain unpaid.

A statewide property tax limitation known as “Proposition 2-1/2” limits the amount of increase in the
property tax levy in any fiscal year. Generally, Proposition 2-1/2 limits the total levy to an amount not
greater than 2-1/2% of the total assessed value of all taxable property within the City. Secondly, the tax levy
cannot increase by more than 2-1/2% of the prior year’s levy plus the taxes on property newly added to the
tax rolls. Certain provisions of Proposition 2-1/2 can be overridden by a citywide referendum.

7. Receivables

Receivables as of year-end for the City’s individual major governmental funds, nonmajor governmental
funds, and Internal Service Fund, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as
follows (in thousands):

Other
Special Capital nonmajor
General revenue projects funds Total
Receivables:
Property taxes $ 13,989 - - - 13,989
Other taxes 142,396 - - - 142,396
Intergovernmental 50,216 77,040 18,195 - 145,451
Other 25,139 60,084 611 29,412 115,246
Gross
receivables 231,740 137,124 18,806 29,412 417,082
Less allowance for
uncollectibles (133,676) - - - (133,676)
Net total
receivables $ 98,064 137,124 18,806 29,412 283,406

a. Long-Term Receivable
The City participates in the Commonwealth’s school building assistance program, which is administered
by the MSBA. The MSBA provides financial assistance (up to 80% of total costs) to the City to build and/or
renovate schools. As of June 30, 2014, under this program, the City was due funds totaling $36.5 million.
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In the General Fund, the receivable is offset by deferred inflows of resources because the revenue is not
considered available. The following is a schedule of the five-year paydown (in thousands) as of June 30,
2015 through 2019, and in five-year increments thereafter:

Anticipated
revenue
Fiscal year(s):

2015 S 8,176
2016 7,344
2017 6,720
2018 6,720
2019 5,107
2020 - 2023 2,462

Total S 36,529

b. Notes Receivable
Section 108 is the loan guarantee provision of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
program. Section 108 provides communities with a source of financing for economic development,
housing rehabilitation, public facilities, and large-scale physical development projects. Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) provides grants or loans to local governments, which in turn provides loans to
developers. As of June 30, 2014, under this program, the City determined that $60.0 million was
collectible. This amount is recorded in the City’s Special Revenue fund.
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Capital asset activity for the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows

(in thousands):

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets
being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets
being depreciated, net

Governmental activities
capital assets, net

S

Beginning Ending

balance Increases Decreases balance
25,369 306 - 25,675
86,029 190,235 (87,075) 189,189
111,398 190,541 (87,075) 214,864
187,373 15,789 - 203,162
1,928,031 35,591 (135) 1,963,487
338,660 28,494 (8,319) 358,835
622,248 36,098 - 658,346
3,076,312 115,972 (8,454) 3,183,830
65,317 10,110 - 75,427
1,043,766 38,774 (135) 1,082,405
240,582 32,437 (8,428) 264,591
209,994 20,223 - 230,217
1,559,659 101,544 (8,563) 1,652,640
1,516,653 14,428 109 1,531,190
1,628,051 204,969 (86,966) 1,746,054

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the governmental activities as follows (in thousands):

General government
Human services
Public safety

Public works, including depreciation of general infrastructure assets

Property and development
Parks and recreation
Library

Schools

Public health

Total depreciation expense — governmental activities

$ 10,174
2,583

16,218

21,472

4,433

9,022

3,766

33,629

247

$ 101,544
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9. Interfund Balances and Amounts Due To and From Component Units

Individual fund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2014 are as follows (in thousands):

Interfund balances Receivable Payable
General S 1,259 1,799
Special revenue 2,963 2,423
Capital projects 14,059 4,075
Non-major governmental funds 7,298 17,282
Balances at June 30, 2014 S 25,579 25,579

The purpose of the internal balances is to fund cash flows due to timing differences between receipts and
disbursements.

Amounts due to and from discretely presented component units at June 30, 2014 are as follows (in
thousands):

Discrete component unit balances Receivable Payable
Primary government:
General S 13,998 252
Balances at June 30, 2014 13,998 252

Discretely presented component units:

TPL - 1,233
PHC 252 779
BRA - 11,986

252 13,998

Balances at June 30, 2014 S 14,250 14,250
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10. Long-Term Obligations

Governmental Activities

The following is a summary of the long-term obligations of the governmental activities of the City as of
June 30, 2014 (in thousands):

Outstanding,

Interest beginning Outstanding, Due within
rates of year Additions Reductions  end of year one year
Bonds Payable:
General Obligation Bonds 2.0-575% S 742,135 153,000 50,370 844,765 58,360
General Obligation Refunding Bonds 0.125-5.0% 402,390 0 53,300 349,090 48,555
Total governmental general obligation bonds payable $ 1,144,525 153,000 103,670 1,193,855 106,915
Add (deduct):

Unamortized bond premiums/discounts net 102,298

Current portion of long-term debt (106,915)

$ 1,189,238

Outstanding,
Interest beginning Outstanding, Due within
rates of year Additions  Reductions end of year one year
Notes, Leases and Other long-term obligations:

Notes payable 4.25-7.18% S 76,587 3,200 4,107 75,680 2,275
Leases payable 39,365 22,244 15,722 45,887 15,525
Judgments and claims 42,038 - 20,042 21,996 6,485
Workers’ compensation 126,429 34,961 21,348 140,042 51,199
Health and life claims 21,862 305,326 302,876 24,312 24,312
Compensated absences 181,283 76,886 67,800 190,369 53,871
Landfill closure and postclosure care costs 8,118 - 167 7,951 200
Pollution remediation 500 - - 500 -
Other postemployment benefits 639,733 170,249 153,639 656,343 -
Total notes, leases, and other long-term obligations ~ $ 1,135,915 612,866 585,701 1,163,080 153,867

The other postemployment benefit liability as of the beginning of the year was restated. See note 2(n)
for further explanation.

The payment of long term obligations of the governmental activities, except for health and life claims, is
the responsibility of the City’s General Fund. Health and life claims are the responsibility of the City’s
Internal Service Fund.
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The annual debt service requirements of the City’s general obligation bonds, notes and leases payable as
of June 30, 2014, including subsidies to be received for Build America Bonds and Qualified School
Construction Bonds, are as follows (in thousands):

General obligation bonds: Principal Interest Subsidy Total
Year(s) ending June 30:

2015 S 106,915 51,357 (3,527) 154,745
2016 103,355 46,925 (3,527) 146,753
2017 99,810 41,987 (3,495) 138,302
2018 94,555 37,178 (3,430) 128,303
2019 87,985 32,821 (3,358) 117,448
2020-2024 364,155 109,239 (14,101) 459,293
2025-2029 246,935 41,201 (2,928) 285,208
2030-2034 90,145 8,189 (73) 98,261

S 1,193,855 368,897 (34,439) 1,528,313

Notes Payable:

Year(s) ending June 30:

2015 S 2,275 1,598 - 3,873
2016 2,248 1,500 - 3,748
2017 1,971 1,416 - 3,387
2018 5,092 1,248 - 6,340
2019 1,307 1,103 - 2,410
2020-2024 9,021 4,842 - 13,863
2025-2029 12,555 3,514 - 16,069
2030-2034 18,398 1,222 - 19,620
Thereafter 22,813 1,623 - 24,436

S 75,680 18,066 - 93,746

Leases Payable:
Year(s) ending June 30:

2015 $ 15,525 448 - 15,973
2016 12,557 306 - 12,863
2017 8,265 189 - 8,454
2018 4,825 108 - 4,933
2019 3,046 50 - 3,096
2020-2021 1,669 20 - 1,689

S 45,887 1,121 - 47,008

On March 12, 2014, the City issued $153.0 million of general obligation bonds, including $119.1 million
for various municipal capital projects and $33.9 million for the Dudley Municipal Center. Interest on the
bonds are payable semiannually each March 1 and September 1 until maturity in fiscal year 2034.

The City has entered into various capital lease agreements for equipment acquisition. Payments under
these agreements are subject to annual appropriation and, by statute, are not included in the City’s debt
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limit calculations. The gross amount of assets acquired under the equipment lease agreements totals
$45.9 million as of June 30, 2014. The City’s operating lease with DSRC is described in note 19.

No Obligation Debt

The City has outstanding industrial, commercial, and housing development bonds payable solely from
revenues of the respective enterprises that do not constitute an indebtedness of the City and are not
charged against its general credit. This aggregate amount is immaterial to the financial statements.

Defeased Debt

The principal amount of debt refunded through in-substance defeasance transactions for governmental
activities and still outstanding at June 30, 2014 was approximately $180.7 million.

Debt Capacity

The City is subject to a dual general debt limit: the normal debt limit and the double debt limit. Such
limits are equal to 5% and 10%, respectively, of the valuation of taxable property in the City as last
equalized by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue. Debt may be authorized up to the normal debt
limit without state approval. Authorizations under the double debt limit, however, require the approval
of the Commonwealth’s Secretary of Administration and Finance. Additionally, there are many
categories of general obligation debt, which are exempt from the debt limit but are subject to other
limitations.

As of June 30, 2014, the City may issue $3.6 billion of additional general obligation debt under the debt
limit. General obligation debt of $551.0 million, subject to the debt limit, and $80.7 million, exempt from
the debt limit, are authorized but unissued as of June 30, 2014.

11. Retirement Plans

a. Plan Description
The City contributes to the SBRS, a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan. The
System provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries of the
following government units:

(1
(2
(3
(4
(5
(6

City of Boston

Boston Redevelopment Authority

Boston Housing Authority

Boston Water and Sewer Commission

Boston Public Health Commission

Sheriff of Suffolk County (Retirees as of December 31, 2009, funded by the City)

—_— — — — ~— ~—

Chapter 32 of the M.G.L. assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan to the
state legislature.

The System is administered by a five person Board of Retirement consisting of the City Auditor, who
serves as a member ex officio, two members who are elected by the participants, in or retired from the
service of the System, a fourth member appointed by the Mayor, and a fifth member chosen by the
other members. A complete set of financial statements for SBRS for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2013 can be obtained through the SBRS, Boston City Hall, Room 816, Boston, MA 02201.
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Participation in the System is mandatory for all permanent, full time employees immediately upon the
commencement of employment. Participants who resign from employment and who are not eligible to
receive a retirement allowance or who are under the age of 55 are entitled to request a refund of their
accumulated total deductions. In addition, depending on the number of years of creditable service, such
participants are entitled to receive either none, 50%, or 100% of the regular interest which has accrued
on those deductions.

Employees with 10 or more years of service are entitled to pension benefits beginning at retirement age
55; an earlier retirement is allowed upon completion of 20 years of service. The System provides for
retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum of 80% of a participant’s highest consecutive three year
average annual rate of regular compensation. Benefit payments are based upon a participant’s age,
length of creditable service, level of compensation, and group classification. Participants become vested
after 10 years of creditable service. Effective July 1, 1998, Chapter 32 of the M.G.L. assigns to the local
retirement boards authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the Plan and grant cost of
living increases.

If a member in service dies, the surviving spouse and/or surviving dependent children may receive
benefits, either in a lump sum or in the form of an annuity based on the length of service, contributions,
age, and the cause of death. In the event there are no spouse and/or dependent children named, other
beneficiaries may be entitled to a lump sum distribution. Participants who become permanently and
totally disabled from further duty may be eligible to receive a disability retirement allowance. The
amount of benefits to be received in such cases is dependent upon several factors, including whether or
not the disability is work related, the participant’s age, years of creditable service, level of
compensation, veteran status, and group classification.

b. Basis of Accounting
The System’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions to
the plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the
contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms
of the plan.

Investments are reported at fair value. Fair values of securities held directly are based on quotations
from national securities exchanges, except for pooled funds, alternative investments, and real estate, for
which fair values are estimated as detailed below:

(1) Pooled funds — the fair value of shares in managed investment pools is based on unit values reported
by the funds.

(2) Alternative investments are carried at the limited partnership interest or redemption value, the
equivalent of net asset value, which approximates fair value.

(3) Real estate investments consist of interests in commercial properties held by various partnerships
and other limited liability entities, some of which utilize debt financing. Fair values of such holdings are
reported based on the net asset values of the entities, which are estimated using third-party appraisals
and other information provided by property managers.
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c. Membership
Membership in the System consisted of the following at December 31, 2013, the date of the latest
actuarial valuation:

Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 14,228
Terminated plan members entitled to but not receiving benefits 15,247
Active plan members 20,767

Total membership 50,242
Total number of participating employers 6

d. Contributions

Plan members are required to contribute to the System. Depending on their employment date, active
members must contribute a range of 5% — 11% of their regular gross compensation. Non-teacher
members hired after January 1, 1979 must contribute an additional 2% of regular compensation in
excess of $30,000. Participating employers are required to pay into the System their share of the
remaining System-wide actuarially determined contribution, which is apportioned among the employers
based on active covered payroll. The contributions of plan members and the participating employers are
governed by Chapter 32 of the M.G.L. For the year ended December 31, 2013, the System was due
$288.5 million from all employers and the Commonwealth and received $288.5 million in these
contributions. For the years ended June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, exclusive of contributions related to
the City’s teachers, the City’s required and actual contributions were $123.6 million, $137.0 million and
$153.0 million, respectively.

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is statutorily required to fund the employer contributions
required for the City’s teachers. For the years ended June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, the
Commonwealth’s required and actual contributions were $90.4 million, $94.8 million and $99.5 million,
respectively. The 2014 amount is reported as intergovernmental revenue and retirement cost
expenditures in the General Fund.

e. Legally Required Reserve Accounts

The balance in the System’s legally required reserves (on the statutory basis of accounting) at
December 31, 2013 is as follows (in thousands):

Description Amount Purpose

Annuity savings fund S 1,522,622 Active members’ contribution balance

Annuity reserve fund 460,326 Retired members’ contribution account

Military service fund 50 Members’ contribution account while on military
leave

Pension reserve fund 3,402,090 Amounts appropriated to fund future retirement
benefits

Pension fund 106,109 Remaining net assets

S 5,491,197

All reserve accounts are funded at levels required by state statute.
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f. Securities Lending
The Public Employment Retirement Administration Commission of Massachusetts (PERAC) has issued
supplemental regulations that permit the System to engage in securities lending transactions. These
transactions are conducted by the System’s custodian, which lends certain securities owned by the
System to other broker dealers and banks pursuant to a form of loan agreement. The System and the
borrowers maintain the right to terminate all securities lending transactions on demand.

At the System’s direction, the custodian lends the System’s securities and receives cash (including both
U.S. and foreign currency), U.S. government securities, sovereign debt of foreign countries, and
irrevocable bank letters of credit as collateral. The custodian does not have the ability to pledge or sell
collateral unless the borrower defaults. Borrowers are required to deliver cash collateral in amounts
equal to not less than 100% of the market value of the loaned securities.

The System does not impose any restrictions on the amount of securities lent on its behalf by the
custodian. There were no failures by any borrowers to return loaned securities or pay distributions
thereon and there were no losses from a default of the borrowers or the custodian for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The cash collateral received by the custodian on each loan was invested, together
with the cash collateral of other qualified tax-exempt plan lenders, in a collective investment pool. The
relationship between the average maturities of the investment pool and loans was affected by the
maturities of the loans made by other plans that invested cash collateral in the collective investment
pool, which the System could not determine. At December 31, 2013, the System had no credit risk
exposure to borrowers because the amounts the System owed the borrowers exceeded the amounts
owed to the System.

At December 31, 2013, the fair value of securities loaned by the System amounted to $197.3 million,
against which was held collateral of $202.7 million as follows (in thousands):

Short-term collateral investment pool $ 185,639
Noncash collateral 17,079
Total S 202,718

g. Commitments
At December 31, 2013, the System had contractual commitments to provide $99.2 million of additional
funding to private equity funds, and $53.7 million to real estate funds.
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h. Funded Status and Funding Progress
The funded status of the System as of January 1, 2013 is as follows (in thousands):

Actuarially accrued liability (AAL) S 8,199,808
Actuarial value of plan assets 5,073,098
Unfunded AAL (UAAL) S 3,126,710
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 61.9%
Covered payroll (active plan members) S 1,360,385
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 229.8%

In the January 1, 2013 actuarial valuation, the individual entry age normal actuarial cost method was
used. The actuarial assumptions included an 7.75% investment rate of return (8.25% for Boston
teachers) projected salary increases of 5.0% (variable rate for Boston Teachers), and cost-of-living
adjustments of 3.0% up to $13,000 annually. The actuarial value of assets was determined using the fair
value of investments. The System’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level
percentage of pay on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at January 1, 2013 was 13 years
(28 years for Boston Teachers).

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI) following the
notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided
under the Commonwealth Statues in effect at the time of each valuation and also consider the pattern
of the sharing of costs between the employee and members at that point in time. The projection of
benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or
contractual funding limitations or the pattern of cost sharing between the employee and members in
the future.

12. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions, requires governments to account for OPEB, primarily healthcare, on an accrual basis.
The effect is the recognition of an actuarially required contribution as an expense on the Government-wide
Statement of Activities when a future retiree earns their postemployment benefit. To the extent that an
entity does not fund their actuarially required contribution, a postemployment benefit liability is recognized
on the Government-wide Statement of Net Position over time. OPEB benefits are reported as expenditures
on a pay-as-you-go basis in the governmental funds.

In addition to the pension benefits described in note 11, the City provides postemployment healthcare and
life insurance benefits, in accordance with state statute and City ordinance, to participating retirees and
their beneficiaries. Participating retirees are City retirees. As of June 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial
valuation date, approximately 14,700 retirees and 14,400 active members meet the eligibility requirements
as put forth in Chapter 32B of M.G.L. The City sponsors and participates in an agent multi-employer defined
benefit OPEB plan. The Boston Public Health Commission, a discretely presented component unit, also
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participates and contributes to the plan. The OPEB plan is administered by the City and does not issue a
stand-alone financial report.

Medical and prescription drug benefits are provided to all eligible retirees not enrolled in Medicare through
a variety of plans offered by Blue Cross Blue Shield of Massachusetts, Harvard Pilgrim HealthCare, and
Neighborhood Health Plan. Medical and prescription drug benefits are provided to retirees enrolled in
Medicare through supplemental and Medicare Advantage plans offered by Blue Cross Blue Shield of
Massachusetts, Harvard Pilgrim HealthCare, and Tufts Health Plan.

Groups 1 and 2 retirees, including teachers, with at least 10 years or 20 years of creditable service are
eligible at age 55 or any age, respectively. Group 4 retirees with at least 10 years or 20 years of creditable
service are eligible at age 45 or any age, respectively. Retirees on accidental disability retirement are eligible
at any age, while ordinary disability requires 10 years of creditable service. The surviving spouse is eligible to
receive pre and postretirement death benefits, as well as medical and prescription drug coverage.

a. Funding Policy
Employer and employee contribution rates are governed by the respective collective bargaining
agreements. The OPEB Plan is currently funded on a pay-as-you-go basis plus periodic advance funding
contributions as amounts are available. The employers and plan members share the cost of benefits. As
of June 30, 2013, the valuation date, the plan members contribute 10% to 26.25% of the monthly
premium cost, depending on the plan in which they are enrolled. The City contributes the balance of the
premium cost.

b. Basis of Accounting
The OPEB Trust Fund is prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions to the
plan are recognized when made. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of each plan.

Investments are reported at fair value. Fair value of securities held directly are based on quotations from
national securities exchanges.
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c. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
The City’s annual OPEB expense is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer
(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45.
The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal
cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liability over a period of 30 years. The following
table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year ended June 30, 2014, the

amount actually contributed to the plan, and the change in the City’s net OPEB obligation based on an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013 (in thousands):

ARC S 153,469
Interest on net OPEB obligation 47,980
Adjustment to ARC (31,200)
Annual OPEB cost 170,249
Contributions made (153,639)
Change in net OPEB obligation 16,610
Net OPEB obligation — beginning of year 639,733
Net OPEB obligation — end of year S 656,343

The Net OPEB Obligation — beginning of year was restated. See note 2(n) for further explanation.

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation were as follows (in thousands):

Percentage of

Fiscal Year Annual OPEB OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended Cost Contributed Obligation
2014 S 170,249 90% S 656,343
2013 208,057 78% 639,733
2012 201,257 90% 594,521

d. Funded Status and Funding Progress of the Plan

The funded status of the OPEB plan in the aggregate and the City’s individual OPEB Plan as of the most
recent actuarial valuation at June 30, 2013 was as follows (in thousands):

Plan City
AAL S 2,352,101 2,257,699
Actuarial value of plan assets 209,779 204,567
UAAL S 2,142,322 2,053,132
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 8.92% 9.06%
Covered payroll (active plan members) S 1,080,837 1,021,081
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 198% 201%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
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assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the City are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the Notes to Financial Statements, presents multiyear trend information that shows whether
the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

e. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the City and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the City and plan members
to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The most recent actuarial valuation was performed as of June 30, 2013. The projected unit credit cost
method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 7.50% investment rate of return, an inflation
rate of 4.5% and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 7.5% initially, reduced by decrements to an
ultimate rate of 5.0% after 5 — 6 years. The actuarial value of assets was determined using the fair value
of investments. The healthcare cost trend rate differs between the master medical and other healthcare
plans. The City’s UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of pay on an open basis. The remaining
amortization period at July 1, 2013 was 30 years.



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ¢ A-59

13. Transfers

Transfers and their purposes during the year ended June 30, 2014 were as follows (in thousands):

Governmental funds

Special Capital Other
General revenue projects governmental
Primary government:
Dudley Municipal Center - - (59,769) 59,769
Debt Service (1,455) - - 1,455
Total S (1,455) - (59,769) 61,224

14. Excess of Expenditures over Budgets

The City had expenditures in excess of their budgeted amounts for the year ended June 30, 2014 in the
following categories (in thousands):

Public safety:

Police Department S 20,367
Fire Department 508
Public Works:
Snow Removal 4,589
Judgments and Claims:
Execution of Courts 9,970
S 35,434

The excess expenditures reported above are allowed under the budgetary laws governing the City.
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15. Fund Balance Classification Details

The components of fund balance for the City’s governmental funds as of June 30, 2014 are as follows (in thousands):

Other
Special Capital governmental
Fund Balances General revenue projects funds
Nonspendable
Permanent fund principal S - - - 4,974
Long-term notes receivable - - - -
Subtotal - - - 4,974
Restricted for:
General government - - 11,207 896
Public safety - - 3,121 -
Property and development - 59,993 14,967 26,062
Parks and recreation - - 4,188 38,827
Library - - 6,614 -
Schools - - 28,257 5,571
Subtotal - 59,993 68,354 71,356
Assigned to:
General government 13,058 8,368 - -
Human services 284 - - -
Public safety 4,832 106,507 - -
Public works 1,375 27,224 - -
Property and development 1,264 - - -
Parks and recreation 358 2,670 - -
Library 97 542 - -
Schools 10,169 9,356 - -
Judgments and claims 65,724 - - -
Catastrophic Loss 26,072 - - -
Housing initiative 9,857 - - -
Debt service 7,162 - - -
Employee related costs 50,000 - - -
Designated for subsequent year expense 61,101 - - -
Subtotal 251,353 154,667 - -
Unassigned 532,955 - - -
Total fund balances S 784,308 214,660 68,354 76,330

16. Commitments and Contingencies

The City has committed $97.1 million in encumbrances for purchase orders, contracts, and judgments and
claims in the General Fund, $27.8 million in the Special Revenue Fund, $137.4 million in the Capital Projects
Fund, and $309 thousand in Other Governmental Funds.

17. Public Health System

Effective July 1, 1996, the City’s Department of Health and Hospitals and Trustees of Health and Hospitals
were abolished. Substantially all their assets and liabilities, including title to the City’s two hospitals, BCH
and Boston Specialty and Rehabilitation Hospital (BSRH), were transferred to and assumed by PHC.

Also effective July 1, 1996, the operations of BCH and BSRH were consolidated with the operations of the
Boston University Medical Center under the licensure and control of the BMC.
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The PHC receives the majority of its funding from federal and state grants, and a City appropriation. During
fiscal year 2014, the City appropriated $66.8 million to the PHC. As described below, the PHC uses the
appropriation to pay debt service on certain general obligation bonds, for administrative purposes and to
support the various public health programs run by the PHC. The City has budgeted $67.6 million for the PHC
for fiscal year 2015.

Due from PHC/BMC

General obligation bonds issued by the City between December 1967 and October 1995 for which PHC is
responsible for repayment total $0.8 million as of June 30, 2014. These bonds pertain to the property and
operations of the BCH Campus, South Block Campus, BSRH Campus, Emergency Medical Services
Operations, and the Long Island Campus.

In addition, the PHC is also responsible for reimbursing the City for health insurance, equipment lease
payments, workers’ compensation, and other miscellaneous expenses paid for by the City.

Risk Management

The Risk Management Program focuses on a planned strategy of self-insurance, supported by strong
prevention and cost reduction efforts, financial reserves and catastrophic insurance. The City is self-insured
in most areas of risk including general liability, property and casualty, workers’ compensation, certain
employee health care costs and unemployment compensation.

The City’s legal liabilities are capped per M.G.L. Chapter 258, and Corporation Counsel defends the City in
any lawsuits that arise from the normal course of operations. For workers’ compensation, the City is exempt
from state insurance requirements per M.G.L. Chapter 152 Section 25B. The City’s Workers’ Compensation
Division, as well as the Police and Fire Departments, manage employee injury claims internally. The City
budgets for and funds legal claims and employee injury costs through the General Fund, charging specific
departments for their share of costs in order to promote awareness and prevention efforts.

The City provides health insurance coverage for employees and retirees through a variety of insured and
self-insured plans. The City budgets for and funds the premium costs for all plans through the General Fund.
Self-insured plans are financially managed through the Internal Service Fund established in compliance with
M.G.L. Chapter 32B, Section 3A. In fiscal year 2013, a guiding policy for the more prudent management of
the City of Boston Health Claims Trust Fund was established. This policy states that accounting for the fund
will be in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and will ensure that all contributions
and actual costs are shared between employers and their subscribers according to predetermined ratios.

For unexpected large losses, the City maintains a catastrophic risk reserve, which has an available balance of
$26.1 million at the end of fiscal 2014. To further protect the City’s assets and finances from adverse loss,
commercial insurance is purchased strategically for certain exposures. A catastrophic property insurance
policy provides $100.0 million for all risk protection after a $10.0 million deductible. Boiler and machinery
losses are insured up to $25.0 million per incident, after a $50 thousand deductible.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ¢ A-61
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The City has established a liability based on historical trends of previous years and attorneys’ estimates of
pending matters and lawsuits in which the City is involved. Changes in the self-insurance liability for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows (in thousands):

Internal service fund

2014 2013
Health and life claims, beginning of year S 21,862 5,614
Incurred claims 305,326 301,467
Payments of claims attributable to events of both the
current and prior fiscal years:
Health and life (302,876) (285,219)
Health and life claims, end of year S 24,312 21,862

Government-wide statements

2014 2013
Judgments and claims, beginning of year S 168,467 157,161
Incurred claims 38,513 58,805
Payments of claims attributable to events of both the current
and prior fiscal years:

Workers’ compensation (21,348) (16,648)

Unemployment compensation (3,552) (3,993)

Tax abatement liability (2,100) (21,600)

Court judgments (17,942) (5,258)
Judgments and claims, end of year S 162,038 168,467

The liabilities above have not been discounted to their present value. Incurred claims represent the total of
a provision for events of the current fiscal year and any change in the provision for events of the prior fiscal
years.

There are numerous pending matters and lawsuits in which the City is involved. The City attorneys’ estimate
that the potential claims against the City not recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements
resulting from such litigation would not materially affect the basic financial statements.

19. Dudley Square Realty Corporation (DSRC) and Ferdinand Building Development Corporation (FBDC)

As described in note 1, the DSRC is a Qualified Active Low-Income Community Business, and is the owner and
developer of the Dudley Municipal Center property. FBDC is the leverage lender of the Dudley Municipal
Center property. During the year ended June 30, 2014, the City granted DSRC $59.8 million. This is a grant for
funding the project and there is no obligation for any payments back to the City regarding this grant. As the
project sponsor during fiscal year 2013, the City authorized and issued $28.9 million in general obligation
bonds and transferred proceeds to FBDC. FBDC, utilizing these bond proceeds, made loans totaling $29.3
million to two investment funds. As of June 30, 2014 $29.3 million is due to FBDC on such loans. The
investment funds made these proceeds and funds from additional investments available to eight leverage
lenders that made loans in the aggregate amount of $40.8 million to DSRC to finance the Dudley Municipal
Center project. This amount is recorded in the City’s Notes and Leases Payable line of note 10. Upon
completion of the Dudley Municipal Center project, FBDC will be the master tenant and will lease the project
from DSRC.
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DSRC will then sublease the majority of space of the project to the City. The schedule of payments is the
same in the lease and the sublease as follows (in thousands):

Year(s) ending June 30: Lease payments
2015 S 276
2016 551
2017 551
2018 551
2019 595
2020-2024 5,278
2025-2029 10,150
2030-2034 10,150
2035-2039 10,150
2040-2044 10,150
2045-2048 5,075

Total S 53,477
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20. Discretely Presented Component Units

The following presents condensed financial statements for each of the discretely presented component

units:
Condensed Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2014
(In thousands)
PHC BRA TPL EDIC Total
Assets:
Current assets:

Cash and investments S 37,068 35,919 10,247 15,247 98,481
Cash and investments held

by trustee - - 2,571 - 2,571
Receivables, net:

Other 32,895 12,523 926 7,294 53,638
Other assets 693 17 30 264 1,004
Due from primary

government 252 - - - 252

Total current assets 70,908 48,459 13,774 22,805 155,946
Noncurrent assets:
Cash and investments held

by trustee - - 58,321 - 58,321
Notes receivable 32,595 135,097 - - 167,692
Other assets 320 - - - 320
Capital assets: -

Nondepreciable 11,746 15,411 150 3,097 30,404

Depreciable 14,449 3,045 610 33,079 51,183

Total noncurrent
assets 59,110 153,553 59,081 36,176 307,920

Total assets S 130,018 202,012 72,855 58,981 463,866
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Condensed Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2014

(In thousands)

PHC BRA TPL EDIC Total
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Warrants and accounts
payable S 16,632 1,241 707 7,041 25,621
Accrued liabilities:
Other 8,499 460 335 1,598 10,892
Current portion of
long-term debt and leases 606 - - 1,163 1,769
Due to primary government 459 - 1,233 - 1,692
Unearned revenue 2,780 1,999 - 22 4,801
Total current
liabilities 28,976 3,700 2,275 9,824 44,775
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds notes and leases due
in more than one year 168 1,475 - 13,720 15,363
Other noncurrent liabilities 4,263 143,617 - 945 148,825
OPEB 71,987 7,385 - - 79,372
Unearned revenue 33,674 28,080 - - 61,754
Due to primary government 320 11,986 - - 12,306
Total noncurrent
liabilities 110,412 192,543 - 14,665 317,620
Total liabilities 139,388 196,243 2,275 24,489 362,395
Net position:
Net investment in capital
assets 25,745 6,486 760 21,293 54,284
Restricted - - 67,091 704 67,795
Unrestricted (35,115) (717) 2,729 12,495 (20,608)

Total net position $ (9,370) 5,769 70,580 34,492 101,471
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Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Expenses

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and
contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total program
revenues

Net expenses

General revenues:
Investmentincome
Sale of property
City appropriation
Miscellaneous income

Total general
revenues

Changein net position

Net position —beginning of year, as restated (refer to note 2n)

Net position —end of year

Year ended June 30, 2014

(In thousands)

PHC BRA TPL EDIC Total

170,048 23,273 9,838 31,101 234,260
44,206 9,406 1,725 18,725 74,062
45,267 8,788 13,036 16,457 83,548
280 - - - 280
89,753 18,194 14,761 35,182 157,890
(80,295) (5,079) 4,923 4,081 (76,370)
(62) 1,029 - 1 968

- 4,260 - - 4,260
66,757 - - - 66,757
8,681 670 197 - 9,548
75,376 5,959 197 1 81,533
(4,919) 880 5,120 4,082 5,163
(4,451) 4,889 65,460 30,410 96,308
(9,370) 5,769 70,580 34,492 101,471
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Required Supplementary Information

(Unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands)

Schedules of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAALas a
Actuarial Actuarial accrued Unfunded Funded percentage of
valuation value of liability AAL (UAAL) ratio Covered covered payroll
date assets (a) (AAL) (b) (b—a) (a/b) payroll (c) ((b-a)/c)
Pension - Plan
01/01/13 S 5,073,098 8,199,808 3,126,710 619 %S 1,360,385 229.8 %
01/01/12 4,855,200 7,902,175 3,046,975 61.4 1,301,803 234.1
01/01/11* 4,592,675 7,382,907 2,790,232 62.2 1,371,363 203.5
01/01/10 4,270,893 7,091,018 2,820,125 60.2 1,306,060 215.9
01/01/09* 4,089,989 6,900,229 2,810,240 59.3 1,364,068 206.0
01/01/08 4,458,002 6,596,148 2,138,146 67.6 1,299,112 164.6

*Liability and payroll estimated from prior year's valuations.

OPEB - City
06/30/13 S 204,567 2,257,699 2,053,132 9.06 % S 1,021,081 201.1 %
06/30/11** 109,736 2,595,942 2,486,206 4.23 1,045,488 237.8
06/30/09** — 3,854,998 3,854,998 — 1,008,004 382.4

OPEB - Plan
06/30/13 $ 209,779 2,352,101 2,142,322 892 % S 1,080,837 198.2 %
06/30/11** 111,038 2,704,200 2,593,162 4.11 1,102,402 235.2
06/30/09** — 3,950,701 3,950,701 — 1,060,919 372.4

** The actuarial accrued liability has been restated. See note 2(n) for further explanation.

Schedules of Employer Contributions

Annual
required Percentage
contribution contributed
Pension Plan
December 31, 2013 S 288,458 100 %
December 31, 2012 261,943 100
December 31, 2011 245,280 100
December 31, 2010 463,656 100
December 31, 2009 250,823 100
December 31, 2008 239,039 100
OPEB - Plan
June 30, 2014 S 162,798 97 %
June 30, 2013 200,041 84
June 30, 2012 194,045 95
OPEB - City
June 30, 2014 S 153,469 100 %
June 30, 2013 186,929 87
June 30, 2012 181,732 99

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements



